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SECTION I:  INTRODUCTORY INFORMATION 
 

Missouri Housing 
Development 
Commission: 

The Missouri Housing Development Commission (“MHDC” 
or the “Commission”) is a governmental instrumentality of the 
state of Missouri and a body corporate and politic.   In 1969, 
the 75th General Assembly of Missouri, in the face of a 
general housing shortage severely affecting low and moderate 
income persons, established the Commission in order to 
increase the availability of decent, safe and sanitary housing at 
prices within the means of low and moderate income persons.  
The Commission’s authority is derived from Chapter 215 of 
the Revised Statutes of Missouri, as amended and 
supplemented.  Chapter 215 provides general information 
about the Commission and is available on-line at: 
http://168.166.54.15/main/OneChapter.aspx?chapter=215  
 
Further information about the Commission and its programs is 
available on the Commission’s website at www.mhdc.com. 

Purpose of RFP: The purpose of this Request for Qualifications and Proposals 
(“RFP”) is to request proposals from qualified independent 
accounting firms for audit and accounting services. 

Scope of Service: Services to be provided include the annual audit of the 
Commission’s financial statements, annual audit of the 
Missouri Housing Trust Fund’s financial statements, and 
annual Single Audit of federal financial assistance including 
preparation of the Data Collection Form. Federal funding 
includes administration of stimulus programs for emergency 
rental assistance (ERA) and homeowner assistance funding 
(HAF) received in accordance with the Consolidated 
Appropriations Act and the American Rescue Plan Act. These 
funds are expected to be expended by 2025. In addition, each 
audit will incorporate observation of internal control 
procedures and advisory consultation regarding professional 
regulatory agency updates (GASB, etc.).  Included in the 
Appendix 1 are copies of the above referenced financial 
reports for the year ended June 30, 2022. 

Term of Service: It is anticipated that the selected firm will be retained by the 
Commission for five years commencing with the fiscal year 
end June 30, 2023 audits.  MHDC reserves the right, at its 
sole discretion, to end the term of service for any firm 
selected pursuant to this RFP, at any time prior to the 
expiration of the stated term of service.  This right 
reserved to MHDC to remove a firm is a unilateral right in 
the sole discretion of MHDC and may be undertaken at 
any time with or without cause.  Selection of a firm to be 
added at such time may be made from among respondents 
to this RFP or pursuant to such other selection process as 
MHDC shall determine at that time. 

http://168.166.54.15/main/OneChapter.aspx?chapter=215
http://www.mhdc.com/


 

 

Submission of 
Proposal: 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Completed proposals must be submitted to the Commission 
electronically by the proposal due date.  Prospective bidders 
shall transmit completed proposals to the Commission by 
email to mlappin@mhdc.com in PDF file format along with 
the spreadsheet listing in Excel file format of the bidding 
firm’s owners pursuant to Section VI.1.  The “Subject” line of 
the email should state “[insert firm name] Proposal for Audit 
and Accounting Services.”   

Proposal Due Date: January 12, 2023 by Noon Central Time 

Anticipated 
Timetable for RFP 
and Proposals: 

Release RFP     
Proposals Due 
Evaluation Committee Recommendation 
Selection by Commissioners 

December 12, 2022 
January 12, 2023 
Feb./March 2023 
Feb./March 2023 
 

 
SECTION II:  PROCEDURES AND INSTRUCTIONS 
 
Questions: The Commission will provide responses to inquiries submitted by 

firms to the Commission’s contact person, Marilyn Lappin.  All 
questions must be submitted in writing via email to Ms. Lappin 
at mlappin@mhdc.com and received no later than December 21, 
2022, 3:00 p.m. CT.  The “Subject” line of the email should be, 
“2023 RFP Audit and Accounting Services Questions.”  Questions 
submitted after the deadline will not receive a response.  Responses 
will be provided by December 28, 2022, 1:00 p.m. CT to all 
interested bidders that have provided an email address to Ms. Lappin 
prior to the above deadline for the submission of questions. 
 
All inquiries must be submitted by email, citing the particular 
proposal section and paragraph number.  Prospective bidders should 
note that all clarifications and exceptions are to be resolved prior to 
submission of the proposal.   

Standards of 
Conduct: 

Please refer to the Commission’s “Standards of Conduct” Policy for 
information regarding contact with MHDC commissioners or staff in 
connection with this RFP, necessary disclosures thereunder and other 
policies regulating the actions of interested parties, employees, 
commissioners, former employees, and former commissioners, 
during a competitive matter. The Commission’s Standards of 
Conduct Policy is available on MHDC’s website at www.mhdc.com.  
 
Furthermore, pursuant to the Standards of Conduct, any Response 
under this RFP shall disclose the name of the individual, entity and/or 
entities having ownership interests in the Respondent as set forth in 
Section VI.1.  
 
 

mailto:mlappin@mhdc.com
mailto:mlappin@mhdc.com
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Modifications to 
Proposals: 

No Respondent may modify or correct its Proposal any time after the 
Proposal Due Date, except in direct response to a request from the 
Commission for clarification.   

Revisions to this 
RFP: 

In the event that it becomes necessary to revise any part of the RFP, 
the Commission will provide an addendum to each firm receiving this 
RFP. Any additional information required to clarify portions of this 
RFP will be issued in the form of an addendum. 

Expense of 
Preparation of 
Proposals: 

The Commission is not responsible for any expense incurred in 
preparing and submitting a Proposal, or taking any action in 
connection with the selection process, or for the costs of any services 
performed in connection with submission of a Proposal. 

Reservation of 
Rights: 

The Commission reserves the right to conduct any investigation of 
the qualifications of any firm that it deems appropriate; negotiate 
modifications to any of the items proposed in the Proposal; request 
additional information from any firm; reject any or all Proposals; and 
waive any irregularities in any Proposal.  The Commission retains 
the right to negotiate the fees and compensation arrangements 
for its audit and accounting services.  The engagement described in 
this RFP is not exclusive and MHDC expressly retains the right at 
any time to retain any other firm or firms to provide other audit and 
accounting services without violating the engagement contemplated 
by this RFP.  

Public Records: Firms responding to this RFP should be aware that the Proposals are 
public records in accordance with state law, after the evaluation and 
selection process is completed. 

Visits and 
Interviews 

All firms responding to this RFP must be prepared to schedule a visit to 
its offices or to another location upon request by the Commission.  In 
addition, firms responding to this RFP may be interviewed by the Audit 
Committee as a part of the selection process. 

 
SECTION III:  BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
 
The Commission’s basic accounting records are currently maintained on Microsoft Dynamics 
GP 2018. Monthly financial statements, including financial statements by program, and certain 
other supplemental reports and schedules are produced. The Commission staff time is limited, 
but staff will be available to provide assistance in preparing confirmations, preparing schedules, 
retrieving and reproducing documents.  Commission staff typically prepares numerous schedules 
in advance of year-end field-work. The Commission staff expects the audit firm selected to assist 
them in keeping apprised of developments and requirements of the professional regulatory 
agencies (GASB, etc.). The audited financial statement reports are drafted by Commission staff 
with final printing provided by the independent accounting firm. 
 



 

 
 
During the audit process, it is important that the firm selected meet with the Commission’s Audit 
Committee, as requested, at least twice a year, including a meeting during the planning period 
and a meeting after the conclusion of the audit.  Such meetings may be held at various locations 
throughout the state.   
 
The Commission’s fiscal year ends June 30th. Planning and interim audit work is generally 
completed in late May/early June in MHDC’s Kansas City office.  Detail work related to federal 
financial assistance programs, including any programs administered by MHDC’s St. Louis 
office, is generally conducted in July. Year-end field work conducted in the Kansas City office 
typically begins the first week of August and concludes in three to four weeks. Remote work is 
acceptable, subject to coordination with Commission staff. The Commission requires the audit to 
be completed and filed within 90 days from fiscal year end. The Commission requires completed 
audit reports in time for its Audit Committee/board package mail-out in September with 
presentation at the Audit Committee/Board of Commissioner’s meeting. Formally sharing the 
audit results with the Commission’s Audit Committee and Board of Commissioners, if requested, 
is an important part of finalizing the audit process. Final reports are to be delivered to the 
Commission in hard copy and electronic format prior to September 28th. 
 
 
SECTION IV:  STRUCTURE OF PROPOSAL 
 

A. Each Proposal shall include a transmittal letter signed by an authorized 
representative of the firm.  In the transmittal letter the firm shall certify (i) that no 
elected or appointed official or employee of the Commission is financially 
interested, directly or indirectly, in the performance of the services specified in 
the RFP, consistent with the Commission’s Standards of Conduct Policy and 
applicable laws and regulations (ii) that the information included in the Proposal 
is true and correct to the best of its knowledge and (iii) that the person signing the 
transmittal letter is authorized to execute the Proposal on behalf of the firm. 

 
B. Proposals should be organized in the same manner as the individual information 

request contained in Section VI: Proposal Details.  Responses to each numbered 
question shall begin on a separate page (e.g., answers to Question 2 should begin 
on a separate page from the response to Question 1). 

 
C. The Commission desires to consider Proposals in a consistent and easily 

comparable format as established in this RFP.  Proposals not organized as set 
forth in this RFP may, at the Commission’s discretion, be considered 
unresponsive. Do not refer to other parts of the Proposal in lieu of answering a 
specific question. Do not provide references to filings or forms publicly available, 
including on the firm’s website or in publicly available sources, in lieu of 
providing specific information in the Proposal. 

 
D. Exhibits containing additional information may be attached to provide a more 

detailed response to a question, but only if clearly identifiable as a response to a 
specific question.   

 
 



 

SECTION V:  MINIMUM QUALIFICATIONS OF RESPONDENT 
 
A. The Respondent must: 

1) be actively engaged in providing audit services to clients who issue public 
debt in individual offerings greater than $25 million; 

2) currently provide financial audit and federal single audit services to state, 
county, city or other government entities, housing authorities, or non-profit 
housing entities with assets greater than $500 million; 

3) have full time equivalent staff of more than 50 employees; and 
4) conform to the independence standard promulgated in the General 

Accounting Office’s Government Auditing Standards. 
 
SECTION VI: PROPOSAL DETAILS  
 
Firms responding to this RFP should prepare clear and complete responses to each of the 
following questions and information requests. Brevity and clarity of responses will be 
appreciated. 
 
1. Profile of the Firm.  Describe the firm and its areas of expertise.  State whether the firm is 

local, regional or national.  Give the location of the office from which the work is to be 
performed and the number of partners, managers, supervisors, and other professional staff 
employed at that office.  As applicable, describe the decision making authority of the 
local office and its relationship to national, regional, or other headquarter offices of the 
firm.  Describe how the firm meets the minimum qualifications listed in Section V. 

 
Pursuant to the Standards of Conduct (see Section II of this RFP), any response under this 
RFP shall disclose the name of the individual, entity and/or entities having ownership 
interests in the Respondent. All entities identified in this disclosure shall be reduced to 
their human being level irrespective of the number of entity layers which may be present 
for any disclosed entity. Notwithstanding the previous sentence, to the extent any 
Respondent under this RFP is a publicly traded corporation, such a Respondent may limit 
this disclosure to all board members, officers (and other key employees) and any 
shareholders owning or controlling ten percent (10%) or more of the corporation. For 
purposes of providing firm ownership information, please complete Appendix 2 in 
spreadsheet format to include a listing of the firm’s owners/shareholders. Questions 
regarding these requirements or any other requirements or restrictions imposed by the 
Standards of Conduct may be directed to the Commission’s General Counsel, Anne 
Powell, by phone at 314-877-1373 or email at apowell@mhdc.com.   

 
2. Contact Person and Staffing.  Provide the name, address, phone number, fax number and 

email address of the primary contact person for the firm’s proposal.  Identify the key 
personnel to be assigned the Commission’s engagement, including supervisory personnel 
and staff from other than the local office. Resumes for each supervisory person to be 
assigned to the audit should be included and specific experience should be indicated.  The 
resumes may be included as an appendix. Describe the firm’s policy regarding 
notification of changes in key engagement personnel and expectations regarding staff 
continuity. 

 
3. Scope of Services.  Clearly describe the scope of the required services to be provided.  

Assuming that the requested services include an examination of MHDC’s and Missouri 
Housing Trust Fund’s financial statements, a single audit of federal financial assistance 



 

and observation of procedures in conjunction with the audits, define the scope of services 
to be provided in those terms.   
 

4. Audit and Accounting Services.  Clearly describe the firm’s approach to conducting the 
examination.  Discuss the firm’s philosophy of providing audit services to the client, 
including annual financial audits and single audits, along with other accounting services.   

 
5. Qualifications and Experience. Describe the firm’s relevant work with other propriety 

fund and fiduciary fund governmental agencies, other housing finance agencies and 
government organizations for which the Single Audit was performed. Describe the range 
of activities performed by the local office that will provide services to MHDC in the 
governmental area such as audit, accounting or management consulting services. Indicate 
if the firm is a member of the AICPA Governmental Audit Quality Center (GAQC). 

 
6. Audit Reports. The audit reports provided by the firm are expected to be similar to those 

included among the enclosures.  If the firm has any discomfort with this, in terms of 
format, accounting treatment or disclosure, please discuss this and describe what the firm 
would require in the way of changes. 

 
7. Peer Review. Include a copy of the firm’s most recent peer review report. Provide results 

of any relevant external quality control reviews, including peer reviews, completed in the 
last five years. 
 

8. Authorization to Do Business in Missouri. Respondent should explain its authorization to 
do business in Missouri and include a copy of relevant public documents, such as a 
Missouri certificate of good standing, a foreign business registration, a fictitious name 
filing, or a copy of filed organizational documents. Likewise, Respondent must explain 
authorization to do business in Missouri and include like documents for all third‐party 
agreements, joint venture arrangements, and/or relationships that will result in the 
provision of any services in whole or in part by outside parties, third‐party contractors, 
affiliates, or subcontractors. In the event the Respondent or other entities included in the 
Response is not currently authorized to do business in Missouri, include Respondent’s 
proposed method and timeline for gaining authorization. 
 

9. Economic Impact to Missouri. The Respondent must provide information and data 
concerning the economic impact of any contract entered into pursuant to this RFP.  At 
minimum, the Respondent must provide:  a) a description of proposed services that will 
be performed and/or the proposed products that will be provided by Missourians; b) a 
description of the economic impact returned to the State of Missouri through tax revenue 
obligations and otherwise; and c) a description of the Respondent’s economic presence 
within the State of Missouri, including Missouri employee statistics. 

 
10. Litigation, Investigations and Regulatory Proceedings. Describe any federal or state 

pending investigation, litigation, recent settlements or regulatory sanctions in performing 
auditing and/or accounting services over the last five years regarding the firm and any 
members or employees of the firm.  Give sufficient detail for evaluation.   

 
Indicate whether during the last five years the firm or any of its members or employees 
have been disciplined by the Missouri State Board of Accountancy (or any other 
professional licensing or regulatory board, wherever located), and if so, describe the 
circumstances.   



 

 
Indicate whether the firm or any of its members or employees have been involved as a 
party to any litigation or as an expert witness in any litigations involving as a party the 
State of Missouri or one of its agencies, over the last five years and if so, describe the 
circumstances.   
 
If necessary, responses to this question may be included in as a separate appendix to the 
proposal. 

 
11. References. Provide the names, contact person(s) and phone numbers for up to three 

references each for financial audit and single audit work most similar to the 
Commission’s.  The same references may be used for both the financial and single audits. 

 
12. Special Strengths. Describe any special strengths or capabilities of the firm.  Give any 

additional information considered essential to this proposal, including involvement in 
state and local government organizations, seminars, special services offered, etc.  
Publications of the firm, such as directories, articles, and lists of clients may be included 
but should not be voluminous. As may be applicable, describe the firm’s presence of 
offices or headquarters in Missouri, the number of employees of the firm within 
Missouri, the firm’s status as a minority or woman-owned firm or any other special 
services or assistance the firm may provide to MHDC that may be relevant to or helpful 
to MHDC for its audit and accounting services. Describe the minority representation of 
personnel within the firm and the involvement of any minority persons or firms that 
would be assisting in any capacity with providing services to MHDC.  Indicate if there 
would be a joint venture with a minority or woman-owned firm through a third party 
contract for part of the services. 

 
If there is a joint venture with a minority or woman-owned firm, questions # 1, 2, 5, 7, 8, 
10 and 14 should also be completed for the minority/woman-owned firm. 

 
13. Proposed Fees.  Discuss the firm’s philosophy of establishing fees for the services 

described in questions #3 and 4 above and the effect of the five-year service period. 
Provide the proposed fee structure for the annual audits, including start-up costs, if any, 
and list in a chart for each of the years of service contemplated by this RFP (sample chart 
depicted below).   

 
 MHDC Trust Fund Single Audit Total fees 

FY2023     
FY2024     
FY2025     
FY2026     
FY2027     

 
For purposes of the Single Audit, please state the firm’s fees assuming one major 
program. Indicate the additional fees that will be charged for each additional major 
program based on the programs as included on the Commission’s fiscal year 2022 
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards included in Appendix 1. For any new 
programs state how such fee will be determined. 
 
State whether the proposed fees include expenses, or whether expenses will be charged 
separately.  If expenses are to be charged separately, please state how such expenses will 



 

be determined and whether there is a minimum or maximum expense amount.  Describe 
the approach and method of communication for fee and expense adjustments, if any. 
 

14. Federal Work Authorization Program.  Pursuant to Mo.Rev.Stat. §285.530.2, the firm 
selected pursuant to this RFP shall provide MHDC with an affidavit stating that the firm 
does not employ any person who is an unauthorized alien in conjunction with the 
contracted services, and that the firm is enrolled in and participating in a federal work 
authorization program with respect to the employees working in connection with the 
contracted services. Prior to execution of any agreement contemplated herein, the firm 
shall provide evidence of participation in a federal work authorization program.  
Questions regarding this requirement may be directed to the Commission’s General 
Counsel, Anne Powell, by phone at 314-877-1373 or email at apowell@mhdc.com. In 
the proposal, please indicate whether the firm is currently enrolled in and 
participating in a federal work authorization program such as E-Verify. 
 

15. Prohibition to Boycott Israel. Pursuant to Mo.Rev.Stat. §34.600, MHDC shall not enter 
into a contract with any firm that boycotts Israel. In the proposal, state whether the firm is 
or is not currently engaged in a boycott of (i) goods or services from the State of Israel; 
(ii) companies doing business in or with Israel or authorized by, licensed by, or organized 
under the laws of the State of Israel; or (iii) persons or entities doing business in the State 
of Israel. “Boycott” means refusing to deal with, terminating business activities with, or 
otherwise taking any action that is intended to penalize, inflict economic harm on, or 
limit commercial relations, but does not include an action made for ordinary business 
purposes. 

 



 

 
SECTION VII:  EVALUATION CRITERIA 
 
The qualifications of the firms submitting proposals will be reviewed by Commission staff and it 
is possible that a number of the firms may be invited to make presentations to the Audit 
Committee.  The principal factor in the selection of an independent auditor is the auditor’s ability 
to perform a quality audit.  The criteria to be used in evaluating the Proposals will include, but 
are not limited to, the following: 
  

1. Qualifications, capabilities and expertise of the firm and proposed staff. 
 

2. Relevant prior experience (relevant state work or work with large county or city housing 
authorities preferred; size of compliance audit clients also considered). 
 

3. The firm’s capacity to perform the services described under Scope of Services above in a 
prompt, responsive manner with excellent quality of work product. 
 

4. Feedback obtained from references.  
 

5. The location, extent and capabilities of the firm’s offices and employees in Missouri, and 
economic impact to Missouri. 
 

6. The Commission’s prior experiences, if any, with the firm and any other factors the 
Commission believes would be in its best interest to consider. 
 

7. Related disciplinary actions, investigations, regulatory proceedings and litigation 
involving the firm will be taken into account, depending upon the nature and significance 
of the proceedings. 
 

8. Special capabilities of the firm, including special strengths as described in Section VI 
question #12. 
 

9. Proposed fees and charges for services.   
 
 

There is no additional information requested. Thank you for reviewing this RFP.   
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Included in this appendix are the following reports for the year ended June 30, 2022: 
 

• MHDC Reports and Financial Statements (including Single Audit reports) 
 
• Missouri Housing Trust Fund Financial Statements 
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Independent Auditors’ Report 
 
 
The Commissioners 
Missouri Housing Development Commission 
Kansas City, Missouri 
 
 
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 
 
Opinion  
 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the business-type activities and the 
aggregate remaining fund information of the Missouri Housing Development Commission, as of 
and for the year ended June 30, 2022, and the related notes to the financial statements, which 
collectively comprise the Missouri Housing Development Commission’s basic financial statements 
as listed in the table of contents.  
 
In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the 
respective financial position of the business-type activities and the aggregate remaining fund 
information of the Missouri Housing Development Commission as of June 30, 2022, and the 
respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year 
then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America. 
 
Basis for Opinions 
 
We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America (GAAS) and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in 
Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Our 
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for 
the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of 
Missouri Housing Development Commission and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in 
accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit 
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions. 
 
Emphasis of Matters 
 
As discussed in Note 1 to the financial statements, as of July 1, 2021, the Missouri Housing 
Development Commission adopted Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statements No. 
87, Leases and No. 91, Conduit Debt Obligations.  Our opinions are not modified with respect to 
these matters. 
 



The Commissioners 
Missouri Housing Development Commission 
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Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements 
 
Missouri Housing Development Commission’s management is responsible for the preparation and 
fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America, and for the design, implementation, and maintenance 
of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.  
 
In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are 
conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about Missouri 
Housing Development Commission’s ability to continue as a going concern for 12 months beyond 
the financial statement date, including any currently known information that may raise 
substantial doubt shortly thereafter.  
 
Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 
 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a 
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an 
auditors’ report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but 
is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance 
with GAAS and Government Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement 
when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher 
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material if 
there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the 
judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements.  
 
In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS and Government Auditing Standards, we:  
 

• Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the 
audit.  

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, 
whether due to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to 
those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the 
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing 
an opinion on the effectiveness of Missouri Housing Development Commission’s internal 
control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall 
presentation of the financial statements. 

• Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the 
aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about Missouri Housing Development 
Commission’s ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of time. 



The Commissioners 
Missouri Housing Development Commission 
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We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other 
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain 
internal control related matters that we identified during the audit. 
 
Required Supplementary Information  
 
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the 
management’s discussion and analysis, schedules of Commission’s proportionate share of the net 
pension and OPEB liability and schedules of Commission’s contributions on pages 5 through 14 
and 60 and 61 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements.  Such information, 
although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting 
Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the 
basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic or historical context.  We have 
applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with 
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of 
inquires of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the 
information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquires, the basic financial 
statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements.  
We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited 
procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any 
assurance. 
 
Supplementary Information 
 
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that 
collectively comprise the Missouri Housing Development Commission’s basic financial 
statements.  The accompanying supplementary information, which includes the combining 
statement of net position; combining statement of net position multifamily bond-financed 
programs; combining statement of net position single family bond-financed programs; combining 
statement of revenues, expenses and changes in net position; combining statement of revenues, 
expenses and changes in net position multifamily bond-financed programs; combining statement 
of revenues, expenses and changes in net position single family bond-financed programs; as well 
as the schedule of expenditures of federal awards, as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal 
Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit 
Requirements for Federal Awards, as listed in the table of contents, are presented for purposes of 
additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements.   
 
The supplementary information is the responsibility of management, and was derived from, and 
relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial 
statements.  Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit 
of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and 
reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to 
prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other 
additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America.  In our opinion, this supplementary information is fairly stated in all material 
respects in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole. 
 



The Commissioners 
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Other Reporting Required By Government Auditing Standards 
 
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated 
September 15, 2022 on our consideration of the Missouri Housing Development Commission’s 
internal control over financial reporting and our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of 
laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements and other matters.  The purpose of that report 
is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and 
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal control 
over financial reporting or on compliance.  That report is an integral part of an audit performed 
in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Missouri Housing 
Development Commission’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.  
 

 
 
September 15, 2022 
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
For The Year Ended June 30, 2022  

 
 
Management’s discussion and analysis provides an overview of the financial activities of 
the Missouri Housing Development Commission (Commission) and its financial 
performance for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022.  Please read it in conjunction with 
the Commission’s financial statements and accompanying notes. 
 
Introduction - Missouri Housing Development Commission 

The Missouri Housing Development Commission was established by the 75th Missouri 
General Assembly in 1969 and is the housing finance agency for the state of Missouri 
(State).  The Commission is a self-sustaining organization and does not draw upon the 
general taxing authority of the State.  The Commission secures resources through the 
sale of bonds and notes and through the sale of mortgage assets, for the purposes of 
financing owner-occupied residential mortgage loans for lower and moderate-income 
persons and providing construction and long-term financing for rental developments to 
be occupied by lower and moderate-income persons.  The Commission’s net position is 
also a source of funding for such loans and other housing-related programs. 
 
The Commission manages other programs related to its housing finance activities, 
including administering the Missouri Housing Trust Fund, the Missouri Affordable 
Housing Assistance Program and the housing tax credits for the State.  The Commission 
also administers federal and other assistance programs, including U.S. Department of 
the Treasury emergency rental and homeowner assistance, the HOME Investment 
Partnerships Program (HOME) and the Project-Based Section 8 program, which provides 
rental subsidies. 
 
Overview of the Financial Statements 

This annual financial report consists of three parts:  management’s discussion and 
analysis; the basic financial statements, including notes to the financial statements; and 
required and other supplementary information.  The basic financial statements include 
the statement of net positon, the statement of revenues, expenses, and changes in net 
position, and the statement of cash flows. The Commission is a self-supporting entity and 
follows enterprise fund reporting, using the accrual basis of accounting.  Enterprise fund 
statements offer short and long-term financial information about the activities and 
operations of the Commission. 
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Financial Highlights 

The following financial highlights provide important aspects regarding the Commission’s 
financial activities and operations, with additional discussion provided in this discussion 
and analysis. This information should be considered in conjunction with the detail 
provided in the financial statements, accompanying notes and supplementary 
information. 
 
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2022  

• Total assets were $2.3 billion, a decrease of .06% from June 30, 2021. Excluding net 
unrealized losses, total assets were $2.4 billion, an increase of 5.7% from June 30, 
2021. The increase resulted from advanced homeowner assistance funds received in 
accordance with the American Rescue Plan Act along with an increase in 
homeownership bond-financed assets, including mortgage-backed securities. 

 
• Fiscal year 2022 mortgage investment purchases and originations totaled 

$271.9 million as compared to $221.9 million in fiscal year 2021. Principal 
repayments on mortgage assets and proceeds from the sale of mortgage assets totaled 
$261.2 million in fiscal year 2022 as compared to $277.5 million in fiscal year 2021. 

 
• Revenue bonds issued totaled $295.0 million in fiscal year 2022 and totaled $224.9 

million in fiscal year 2021.   
 
• Total revenues were $446.2 million in fiscal year 2022. Excluding the net change in 

fair value of investments, total revenues increased 113.7% to $586.5 million  in fiscal 
year 2022. Revenues from federal assistance programs were $512.1 million in fiscal 
year 2022 as compared to $199.1 million in fiscal year 2021. 

 
• Net operating income, excluding the net change in fair value of investments, was 

$28.8 million in fiscal year 2022 as compared to $26.0 million in fiscal year 2021.  
Excluding federal and other assistance programs and the net change in fair value of 
investments, net operating income was $18.6 million in fiscal year 2022 as compared 
to $23.0 million in fiscal year 2021. 

 
• Net position decreased $111.5 million as of June 30, 2022.  Excluding the change in 

fair value of investments, net position increased $20.3 million (2.5%) as of June 30, 
2022. 
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The Commission has maintained a general obligation issuer credit rating from Standard 
and Poor’s Ratings Services of AA+ with a stable outlook. This rating was affirmed 
February 18, 2022. 
 
Financial Position 

The following table summarizes the Commission’s current, restricted and noncurrent 
assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities and deferred inflows of resources.  The 
table also displays restricted and unrestricted net position as of June 30, 2022 and 2021. 
 

2022 2021 2022 - 2021

Assets
Current assets 26,922$           38,407$        (11,485)$        
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 526,760           430,263        96,497           
Restricted investments 103,136           102,826        310                
Restricted mortgage investments 1,345,367         1,415,660     (70,293)          
Other restricted assets 26,389             4,172            22,217           
Capital assets 2,007               2,233            (226)               
Lease assets 2,564               3,305            (741)               
Other 276,072           313,820        (37,748)          

Total Assets 2,309,217         2,310,686     (1,469)            

Deferred Outflows of
Resources 4,798               4,126            672                

Liabilities
Current liabilities 9,897               31,543          (21,646)          
Current liabilities - payable from

restricted assets 430,182           360,136        70,046           
Long-term bonds and notes payable 1,107,394         1,045,470     61,924           
Other 31,185             33,374          (2,189)            

Total Liabilities 1,578,658         1,470,523     108,135         

Deferred Inflows of
Resources 5,339               2,820            2,519             

Net Position
Net investment in capital assets 1,981               2,178            (197)               
Restricted 451,850           545,387        (93,537)          
Unrestricted 276,187           293,904        (17,717)          

Total Net Position 730,018$          841,469$      (111,451)$       

Condensed Summary of Net Position (In Thousands)

June 30, $ change

 
 

The cost-basis of assets totaled $2.4 billion and $2.3 billion at June 30, 2022 and 2021, 
respectively. At June 30, 2022, restricted cash and cash equivalents includes deposit 
balances received in accordance with the Consolidated Appropriations Act and the American 
Rescue Plan Act, including $244.5 million in rental assistance and $127.3 million in 
homeowner assistance funds. 
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The Commission implemented GASB Statement No. 87, Leases. This statement 
establishes a single model for lease accounting based on the foundational principle that 
leases are financings of the right to use an underlying asset. A lessee is required to 
recognize a lease liability and an intangible right-to-use lease asset. The cumulative 
effect of adopting GASB Statement No. 87 as of July 1, 2021 was a net increase of 
$556,000 in the Commission’s enterprise fund net position. Certain 2021 summary 
amounts have been reclassified, where appropriate, to conform to the 2022 financial 
statement presentation. 
 
In addition, the Commission implemented GASB Statement No. 91, Conduit Debt 
Obligations. This statement provides a single method of reporting conduit debt 
obligations by issuers and eliminates diversity in practice associated with (1) 
commitments extended by issuers, (2) arrangements associated with conduit debt 
obligations, and (3) related note disclosures. GASB Statement No. 91 clarifies the existing 
definition of a conduit debt obligation; establishing that a conduit debt obligation is not 
a liability of the issuer. In accordance with this statement, the Commission has excluded 
the assets and liabilities related to its conduit debt from the statement of net position. 
There was no effect to the Commission’s net position. 
 
Investments 

Investments consist of U.S. government and agency fixed rate securities.  The 
Commission’s investment policy emphasizes preservation of principal.  At June 30, 2022, 
the Commission had $331.5 million in investments, at cost, as compared to $308.8 million 
at June 30, 2021. 
 
Mortgage Investments 

The Commission’s mortgage investments, at cost, increased 0.12% during fiscal year 2022.  
Mortgage investments, as reported, comprised 62.7% of the Commission’s total assets at 
June 30, 2022 as compared to 66.9% at June 30, 2021. Government National Mortgage 
Association (GNMA), Federal National Mortgage Association (Fannie Mae) and Federal 
Home Loan Mortgage Corporation (Freddie Mac) mortgage-backed securities (MBS) 
comprise 72.1% of the Commission’s mortgage investments at June 30, 2022 compared to 
71.1% at June 30, 2021.  In fiscal year 2022 new loans totaled $271.9 million, with mortgage 
asset sales, payment and prepayment activity and change in fair value resulting in a net 
decrease of $97.1 million in the mortgage investment portfolio, as reported.  Excluding 
unrealized net losses presented, the Commission’s mortgage investments increased $1.9 
million in fiscal year 2022. The Commission’s loan portfolio is low-risk, with all of the bond-
financed homeownership loan investment portfolio being GNMA, Fannie Mae and Freddie 
Mac MBS and its bond-financed multifamily loan portfolio backed by Federal Housing 
Administration (FHA) insurance, including Risk-Share loans.  The Commission’s loan loss 
reserve was 9.3% of total mortgage assets, excluding MBS, at June 30, 2022 as compared 
to 9.0% at June 30, 2021 which is allocated to uninsured loans, Risk-Share loans and 
related accrued interest on such loans.   
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The composition of mortgage investments among operating fund loans, multifamily bond-
financed programs and single family bond-financed programs at June 30, 2022 and 2021 
is depicted in the following chart: 
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The Commission’s operating fund mortgage investments include mortgage-backed 
securities and loans financed with fund balances (net position) and Federal Home Loan 
Bank (FHLB) advances.  These mortgage investments total $145.2 million at June 30, 
2022, as compared to $172.3 million at June 30, 2021.  The operating fund mortgage 
investments also include loans financed by the federal HOME program totaling $227.1 
million at June 30, 2022, as compared to $228.5 million at June 30, 2021.  In addition, 
the operating fund loans at June 30, 2022 include $26.9 million in loans financed by the 
federal Tax Credit Assistance Program (TCAP), as compared to $27.3 million at June 30, 
2021.   
 
The Commission’s multifamily loan portfolio includes FHA-insured Risk-Share mortgage 
loans, in which the Commission participates in 50% of the insured risk.  These loans 
totaled $49.1 million at June 30, 2022 and $63.7 million at June 30, 2021.   
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The Commission provides financing for single family mortgages eligible for GNMA, 
Fannie Mae, and Freddie Mac securitization. The Commission currently provides eligible 
homebuyers with mortgage loans financed by the Commission’s first-time homebuyer 
bond programs (First Place loans) for which the MBS are initially purchased for the 
Commission’s warehouse funded by short-term FHLB advances or net position and  
ultimately financed by the proceeds of tax-exempt bonds issued by the Commission. First 
Place MBS purchases totaled $237.8 million and $180.8 million in fiscal years 2022 and 
2021, respectively. Fluctuations reflect first time home purchase activity which is 
impacted by economic conditions, availability of homes and other factors. 
 
The Commission finances eligible homebuyers, including non-first time homebuyers, 
with mortgage loans (Next Step program) financed at predetermined daily prices via the 
To-Be-Announced (TBA) market in accordance with an agreement with a third-party 
administrator.  Next Step MBS delivered totaled $40.9 million in fiscal year 2022 and 
$41.1 million in fiscal year 2021. 
 
Debt 

At June 30, 2022 and 2021, the Commission had $1.1 billion in bonds and notes 
outstanding. Bonds and notes include short-term FHLB advances used to fund the 
Commission’s warehousing of First Place homeownership program mortgage-backed 
securities in advance of selling mortgage revenue bonds. There were no advances 
outstanding at June 30, 2022 as compared to  advances totaling $27.5 million outstanding 
at June 30, 2021. 
 
During fiscal year 2022, new debt issued included four single family mortgage revenue 
bond series which totaled $295.0 million.  The Commission’s single family and multifamily 
housing bonds are rated AA+ with a stable outlook by Standard and Poor’s. For additional 
information, see Note 5, Bonds Payable and Long-Term Obligations, in the Notes to 
Financial Statements. 
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Net Position 

The Commission continues to demonstrate a strong financial position. Net position, 
excluding unrealized gains and losses, was $832.3 million at June 30, 2022 and $812.0 
million at June 30, 2021, representing growth of 2.5% in fiscal year 2022. A significant 
portion of the Commission’s net position is restricted by bond indentures, grant 
agreements and other legal requirements. Restricted net position totaled $451.9 million 
at June 30, 2022 compared to $545.4 million at June 30, 2021. In addition, the 
Commission has designated certain unrestricted net position for its affordable housing 
programs. The amounts designated were $236.9 million at June 30, 2022 and $233.8 
million at June 30, 2021. Net position provides liquidity and capital adequacy to support 
the Commission’s general obligations and commitments, such as the Commission’s 
ongoing operating expenses, construction and permanent loan funding and participation 
in the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) Risk-Share Program, 
that are secured by the Commission’s full faith and credit. 
 
Operating Activities 

The following table summarizes the Commission’s revenues, expenses and changes in net 
position for fiscal years 2022 and 2021.  
 

2022 2021 2022 - 2021

Operating Revenues
Interest and investment income (84,626)$        34,728$    (119,354)$  
Grants and federal assistance 512,133         199,062    313,071         
Other 18,719          16,545      2,174            

 Total Operating Revenues 446,226         250,335    195,891         

Operating Expenses
Interest expense 25,770          29,938      (4,168)           
Compensation and administrative 

expenses 17,443          14,317      3,126            
Grants and federal assistance 501,918         196,018    305,900         
Other 13,152          8,767        4,385            

Total Operating Expenses 558,283         249,040    309,243         

Income before transfers from Custodial Funds (112,057)        1,295        (113,352)        
Transfer from Custodial Funds 606               640          (34)                

Change in Net Position (111,451)$      1,935$      (113,386)$  

Condensed Summary of

Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position (In Thousands)

$ change

 
 

The Commission continues to exhibit healthy financial activity. Total revenues fluctuated 
primarily due to changes in grants and federal assistance and changes in fair value with 
an overall increase in fiscal year 2022.  Excluding the effects of fair value reporting: 
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• Revenues totaled $586.5 million and $274.4 million in fiscal years 2022 and 2021, 
respectively. The increase in fiscal year 2022 primarily resulted from a $313.1 million 
increase in federal grant program revenues. 

• The change in net position was an increase of $20.3 million in fiscal year 2022 and 
$19.7 million in fiscal year 2021, demonstrating continued financial strength. 

• The return on average equity was 2.5% and the return on average assets was 0.9% 
for both fiscal years 2022 and 2021.  

 
Revenues 

Interest and investment income totaled a loss of $84.6 million in fiscal year 2022 as 
compared to income of $34.7 million in fiscal year 2021. This income includes net 
decreases in fair value of $140.3 million in fiscal year 2022 and $24.1 million in fiscal 
year 2021. Changes in the fair value of the Commission’s portfolio of mortgage-backed 
securities and other investments result from fluctuations in interest rates and other 
market factors. Without the fair value adjustments, interest and investment income 
totaled $55.7 million in fiscal year 2022, which was a 5.3% decrease from a total of $58.8 
million in fiscal year 2021. Depending on future financial markets, interest rate 
fluctuations and thus, changes in the fair value of investments and mortgage-backed 
securities reported, are expected to have continuing material effects on the Commission’s 
financial statements. 
 
Other operating revenues include $7.7 million and $6.4 million in administration fee 
income for fiscal years 2022 and 2021, respectively. These fees are predominantly related 
to the Commission’s administration of federal programs. In addition, other operating 
revenues for fiscal year 2022 included $549,000 in fee income for MBS delivered in 
accordance with the Commission’s daily pricing agreement for its Next Step single family 
loan program. This fee income was $724,000 for fiscal year 2021. 
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Grants and Federal Assistance 

Federal and other assistance program revenues and expenses represent activity related to 
projects funded by HUD (including Project-Based Section 8 and HOME), federal programs 
provided in response to the COVID-19 pandemic and other housing programs. These 
revenues totaled $512.1 million in fiscal year 2022 as compared to $199.1 million in fiscal 
year 2021 while expenses incurred were $501.9 million in fiscal year 2022 and $196.0 
million in fiscal year 2021. Grant revenues in fiscal year 2022 increased primarily due to 
additional federal funding, including grant revenue recognized for emergency rental and 
homeowner assistance provided by the Consolidated Appropriations Act and the American 
Rescue Plan Act, which increased to $321.4 million in fiscal year 2022 from $16.5 million 
in fiscal year 2021. Project-Based Section 8 revenues totaled $160.2 million and $157.4 
million in fiscal years 2022 and 2021, respectively. HOME funding has varied reflecting 
timing of awards and disbursements and totaled $11.9 million in fiscal year 2022 and $5.1 
million in fiscal year 2021. These programs, along with tax credit programs, are integral 
to the Commission’s achievement of its objectives. The Commission is providing significant 
housing assisting by administering the federal stimulus programs provided in response to 
the pandemic. The Commission continues to effectively use ongoing federal government 
and other programs that serve its mission utilizing those that provide resources that 
leverage its net position and other resources to finance affordable multifamily and owner-
occupied housing for Missourians as well as provide housing assistance to very low-income 
Missourians. 
 
Expenses 

Interest costs were $25.8 million for fiscal year 2022 as compared to $29.9 million for 
fiscal year 2021 (a decrease of 13.9% in fiscal year 2022). The decrease in fiscal year 2022 
reflects reduced interest costs resulting from multifamily refunding bonds issued and 
paying down optionally callable bonds with available indenture assets during fiscal year 
2021. In addition, bond redemptions in both fiscal years 2022 and 2021 resulted from 
mortgage prepayments.  
 
Beyond the costs associated with debt financing, the Commission’s chief operating costs 
consist of compensation, facilities rent, information systems, professional services and 
travel expenses. These costs totaled $17.4 million in fiscal year 2022 as compared to $14.3 
million in fiscal year 2021. Fiscal year 2022 costs include pension benefit costs of $1.8 
million as compared to $2.2 million in fiscal year 2021. Excluding the net change in the 
fair value of investments, operating costs represented 3.0% of revenues in fiscal year 2022 
as compared to 5.2% of revenue in fiscal year 2021. 
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Economic and Other Factors 

The Commission’s programs and activities are subject to economic and other factors that 
may affect the Commission’s financial position and operations. In the coming year, 
changes in interest rates and market conditions can be expected to impact investment 
earnings and in particular, may result in significant fluctuations in the fair value of 
investments and mortgage-backed securities. The ongoing coronavirus (COVID‐19) 
pandemic as well as ongoing unrest and global conflict impact economic conditions, 
creating uncertainty and potential volatility in financial and business activities. The 
impact on the Commission’s operations and financial condition will depend on future 
developments, including the duration and severity of the pandemic, the extent of federal 
stimulus programs and any disruptions or delays in business activities and market 
volatility. 
    
The level of lending activity in the Commission’s single family programs is impacted by 
economic conditions, including the availability of single family homes for sale. The 
Commission expects to continue to finance its First Place mortgage program primarily 
with tax-exempt bond proceeds. In addition, the Commission plans to continue to deliver 
Next Step program mortgage-backed securities via the TBA market. Changes in interest 
rates and market conditions may impact the Commission’s financing of its 
homeownership programs, including sales in the TBA market as an alternative for 
financing in the tax-exempt bond market. 
 
The Commission administers the Project-Based Section 8 program in the State through 
a contract with HUD, which results in over $160 million in housing assistance payment 
revenue and expense activity annually. The current contract terminates January 31, 
2023.  HUD may extend the current contract term and is planning to competitively bid 
this program administration.   
 
Contacting the Commission’s Financial Management 

This financial report is designed to provide the Commission’s stakeholders with a general 
overview of the Commission’s finances and to demonstrate accountability of resources.  
Questions about this report or inquiries for additional financial information may be 
directed to the Director of Finance at the Missouri Housing Development Commission, 
920 Main Street, Suite 1400, Kansas City, Missouri, 64105 or visit the Commission’s 
website at www.mhdc.com.
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STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 
(In Thousands) 

 
 
 

Assets 2022
Current Assets

Cash and cash equivalents 550$            
Investments 10,730             
Mortgage investments 11,278             
Accrued interest receivable 2,017              
Accounts receivable - other 1,911              
Prepaid expenses 436                 

Total Current Assets 26,922             

Noncurrent Assets
Restricted assets

Cash and cash equivalents 526,760           
Investments 103,136           
Mortgage investments 1,345,367        
Accrued interest receivable 4,124              
Accounts receivable - other 22,265             

Total restricted assets 2,001,652        

Investments 184,105           
Mortgage investments, net of current portion and allowances

for loan losses of $40,248 91,967             
Capital assets, less accumulated depreciation

of $5,271 2,007              
Lease assets, less accumulated amortization

of $1,482 2,564              
Total Noncurrent Assets 2,282,295        

Total Assets 2,309,217        

Deferred Outflows of Resources
Refunding of debt 758                 
Pension 3,441              
Other Postemployment Benefits (OPEB) 599                 

Total Deferred Outflows of Resources 4,798              

June 30,
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STATEMENT OF NET POSITION (Continued) 
(In Thousands) 

 
 
 

2022
Liabilities

Current Liabilities
Lease liabilities 673$            
Accounts payable 7,851              
Unearned revenue 1,373              

Total Current Liabilities 9,897              

Current Liabilities - Payable from Restricted Assets
Bonds and notes payable 30,577             
Accrued interest payable 5,206              
Federal housing subsidy and other deposits 392,934           
Accounts payable 1,465              

Total Current Liabilities - Payable from
Restricted Assets 430,182           

Noncurrent Liabilities 
Lease liabilities 1,917              
Pension 16,154             
Other Postemployment Benefits (OPEB) 5,242              
Unearned revenue 7,872              
Payable from restricted assets
   Bonds and notes payable 1,107,394        

Total Noncurrent Liabilities 1,138,579        

Total Liabilities 1,578,658        

Deferred Inflows of Resources
Refunding of debt 1,038              
Pension 3,168              
Other Postemployment Benefits (OPEB) 1,133              

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 5,339              

Net Position
Net investment in capital assets 1,981              
Restricted 451,850           
Unrestricted, including designated balances 276,187           

Total Net Position 730,018$      

June 30,
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STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND 
CHANGES IN NET POSITION 

(In Thousands) 
 
 
 
 
 

2022
Operating Revenues

Interest and investment income
Income - mortgage investments 51,421$            
Income - investments 4,239                   
Net decrease in fair value (140,286)              

Total interest and investment income (84,626)                

Income - MBS sales 549                      
Administration fees 7,738                   
Other income 10,432                 
Federal program income 512,133               

Total Operating Revenues 446,226               

Operating Expenses
Interest expense on bonds 25,770                 
Bond debt expense and other fees 2,943                   
Compensation 11,825                 
General and administrative expenses 5,618                   
Rent and other subsidy payments 7,052                   
Missouri Housing Trust Fund grants 3,157                   
Federal program expenses 501,918               

Total Operating Expenses 558,283               

Income before transfers from Custodial Funds (112,057)              
Transfer from Custodial Funds 606                      
Change in Net Position (111,451)              

Net Position - Beginning of Year 840,913               
Cumulative effect of Accounting Change 556                      
Net Position - Beginning of Year, as Restated 841,469               

Net Position - End of Year 730,018$           

For the Year
Ended June 30,
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
(In Thousands) 

 
 
 
 

2022
Cash Flows from Operating Activities

Interest received on mortgage investments 51,673$               
Fees, charges and other 12,669                    
Principal repayments on mortgage loans 261,223                  
Disbursements of mortgage loans (271,888)                 
Federal assistance receipts 583,693                  
Federal assistance disbursed (523,126)                 
Collection of compliance and origination fees 6,711                      
Cash payments for compensation, administrative and other costs (15,462)                   
Other operating payments (7,260)                     

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 98,233                    

Cash Flows from Noncapital Financing Activities
Retirement of principal on bonds and notes (414,605)                 
Proceeds from issuance of bonds and notes 454,833                  
Interest paid on bonds and notes (34,155)                   

Net Cash Provided by Noncapital Financing Activities 6,073                      

Cash Flows Used in Capital and Related Financing Activities
Payments for capital assets (499)                        
Payments on leases (770)                        

Net Cash Provided Used in Capital and Related Financing Activities (1,269)                     

Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Purchases of investments (88,214)                   
Proceeds from maturities and sales of investments 65,483                    
Interest received on investments 4,083                      

Net Cash Used in Investing Activities (18,648)                   

Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents 84,389                    

Cash and Cash Equivalents - Beginning of Year 442,921                  

Cash and Cash Equivalents - End of Year 527,310$             

Ended June 30,
For the Year
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Continued) 
(In Thousands) 

 
 
 
 
 
 

2022
Reconciliation of Decrease in Net Position to

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities
Decrease in net position (111,451)$          
Adjustments to reconcile decrease in net position to
  net cash provided by operating activities
    Depreciation and lease amortization 1,466                     
    Net decrease in fair value 140,286                 
    Compliance and origination fee receipts 2,532                     
    Amortization of unearned revenue (2,136)                    
    Income - investments (4,239)                    
    Net change in mortgage loans (10,665)                  
    Interest expense related to bonds and other debt 25,770                   
    Change in deferred outflows related to pensions and OPEB (711)                       
    Change in deferred inflows related to pensions and OPEB 2,592                     
    Change in assets and liabilities
       Increase in accounts receivable (21,998)                  
       Decrease in accrued mortgage interest receivable 252                        
       Increase in prepaid expenses (97)                         
       Increase in federal housing subsidy deposits 71,560                   
       Increase in accounts payable 6,868                     
       Decrease in pension and OPEB liabilities (1,796)                    

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 98,233$              

For the Year
Ended June 30,
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STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION 
(In Thousands) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

2022
Assets

Cash and cash equivalents 7,780$          
Investments 98,949             
Accrued interest receivable 222                 

Total Assets 106,951           

Net Position
Restricted for Mortgagors 106,951           

Total Net Position 106,951$      

June 30,
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION 
(In Thousands) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

2022
Additions

Interest and investment income
Income - investments 987$                 
Net decrease in fair value (10,330)                

Total interest and investment income (9,343)                  

Mortgage escrow receipts - Mortgagors 39,709                 
Total Operating Revenues 30,366                 

Deductions
Mortgage escrow disbursements - Mortgagors 43,329                 
Transfers to Enterprise Fund 606                      

Total Operating Expenses 43,935                 

Change in Net Position (13,569)                

Net Position - Beginning of Year 120,520                

Net Position - End of Year 106,951$           

For the Year
Ended June 30,
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
June 30, 2022  

 
 
1. Nature of Operations and Summary of Significant Accounting 

Policies 
 
Nature of Operations 

The Missouri Housing Development Commission (Commission) is a body corporate 
and politic established on October 13, 1969, by Chapter 215 of the Missouri state 
statutes.  In accordance with the provisions of Chapter 215 and resolutions of the 
Commission, the Commission is authorized to make or purchase mortgage loans 
that are uninsured, partially insured or insured or guaranteed by the federal 
government and to insure mortgage loans, the funds of which are to be used to 
develop new or rehabilitated low and moderate-income housing.  The Commission 
is also authorized to issue bonds for making or purchasing such loans.  The 
outstanding balance of bonds applicable to loans not insured or guaranteed by a 
federal agency or to bonds rated lower than “AA” by rating agencies at the time of 
issuance shall not exceed $200,000,000.  At June 30, 2022, the Commission had 
$15,971,000 of bonds outstanding applicable to conduit loans that are not so 
insured or guaranteed or to bonds that are not so rated. These conduit bonds are 
not reported on the Commission’s statement of net position. Bonds issued by the 
Commission are not an obligation of the state of Missouri (State). 
 
Reporting Entity 

The Commission defines its reporting entity to include all component units for 
which the Commission is financially accountable. The extent of financial 
accountability is based upon several criteria including: appointment of a voting 
majority of the governing body, imposition of will, financial benefit to or burden on 
a primary government and financial accountability as a result of fiscal dependency.  
No separate entities meet the requirements to be considered component units of 
the Commission. 
 
The Commission is considered a related organization of the State for financial 
reporting purposes.  Accordingly, the Commission is included as a note disclosure 
in the state of Missouri’s comprehensive annual financial report. 
 
For financial reporting purposes, the Commission reports its operations as a single 
enterprise fund. The financial statements are prepared using the economic 
resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting with revenues 
recognized when earned and expenses recorded when incurred. All significant 
interfund transactions are eliminated. 
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Revenues and expenses are typically divided into operating and nonoperating 
items.  Operating revenues generally result from providing services in connection 
with the Commission’s principal ongoing operations. The principal operating 
revenues of the Commission are derived from the interest and investment income 
from loans and investments, financing fees, federal and other assistance program 
funding and other charges related to providing financing for affordable housing 
through mortgage loans and grants. Operating expenses consist primarily of 
interest expense on bonds outstanding and federal and other assistance program 
expenses and other costs to administer its affordable housing programs.  All 
revenues and expenses not meeting these definitions would be reported as 
nonoperating revenues and expenses. The Commission has no nonoperating 
activities. 
 
When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the 
Commission’s policy to use restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources 
as needed. 
 
Fiduciary Fund Statements 

The Statement of Fiduciary Net Position and Statement of Changes in Fiduciary 
Net Position provide information on the Commission’s fiduciary activities in 
administering escrow funds on behalf of mortgagors of permanent and construction 
loans serviced by the Commission. The net position of such funds are reported as 
restricted net position for mortgagors in the fiduciary statement of net position. 
Investment earnings on the escrow funds held are reported as additions to 
restricted net position in the Fiduciary Fund. 
 
Use of Estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted 
accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions 
that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of 
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the 
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reported period.  Actual 
results could differ from those estimates. 
 
Cash and Cash Equivalents 

For purposes of reporting cash flows, cash and cash equivalents include cash on 
hand and on deposit and temporary investments with an original maturity of three 
months or less.  At June 30, 2022 cash equivalents consisted primarily of money 
market funds, overnight repurchase agreements, a Federal Home Loan Bank 
(FHLB) daily time account and U.S. Treasury securities. 
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Investments 

Securities purchased under agreements to resell, U.S. government and agency 
securities and mortgage-backed securities are reported at fair value.  Net increases 
(decreases) in fair value are reported on the statement of revenue, expenses and 
changes in net position and the statement of changes in fiduciary net position. 
 
Mortgage Investments 

Proceeds from the sale of bonds, resources provided in the Commission’s 
warehousing program and available net position are used to make mortgage loans 
and to purchase mortgage-backed securities.  The mortgage-backed securities are 
guaranteed as to timely payment of principal and interest by the Government 
National Mortgage Association (GNMA), Federal National Mortgage Association 
(Fannie Mae) or the Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation (Freddie Mac) and 
are backed by pools of qualifying mortgage loans.  Advances made on such loans 
during the construction period of related housing units are recorded as 
construction loans and are serviced as mortgage loans upon final endorsement 
after construction completion. Mortgage and construction loans are reported at 
cost, while GNMA, Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac mortgage-backed securities are 
reported at fair value. 
 
Loans that management has the intent and ability to hold for the foreseeable 
future or until maturity or payoffs are reported at their outstanding principal 
balances adjusted for any charge-offs and the allowance for loan losses.  Generally, 
loans are evaluated for nonaccrual status at 90 days past due and interest is 
considered a loss, unless the loan is well secured and in the process of collection. 
 
Fair Value Reporting 

The Commission categorizes its fair value measurements applicable for reporting 
its investments and mortgage-backed securities within the fair value hierarchy 
established by generally accepted accounting principles. The hierarchy is based on 
the valuation inputs used to measure the fair value of the asset. Level 1 inputs are 
quoted prices in active markets for identical assets; Level 2 inputs are significant 
other observable inputs; and Level 3 inputs are significant unobservable inputs.  
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Allowance for Loan Losses 

The allowance for loan losses is associated with uninsured loans, Risk-Share loans 
and related accrued interest on such loans. The allowance is management’s 
estimate of uncollectible loans and related accrued interest and is based on existing 
payment conditions, prior experience and such other factors that, in management’s 
opinion, require consideration. For financial statement presentation, the allowance 
for loan losses has been netted against the noncurrent portion of mortgage and 
construction loans. 
 
Original Issue Discounts and Premiums 

Original issue bond discounts and premiums are deferred and amortized over the 
life of the related issue using the effective interest method or the outstanding bond 
method, which approximates the effective interest method. 
 
Capital and Lease Assets 

Capital assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and consist of 
leasehold improvements, software, office furniture and equipment.  Depreciation 
is calculated on the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the 
assets, which range from two to seven years. The Commission defines capital 
assets as assets with an initial, individual cost of more than $5,000 and an 
estimated useful life in excess of one year. 
 
The Commission recognizes a lease liability and an intangible right-to-use lease 
asset at the commencement of the lease term.  The lease asset is amortized over 
the shorter of the lease term or the useful life of the underlying asset. 

 
Deferred Inflows and Deferred Outflows of Resources 

In addition to assets, the statement of financial position includes a separate section 
for deferred outflows of resources.  This separate financial element represents a 
consumption of net position that applies to future periods and so will not be 
recognized as an outflow of resources until then.   
 
In addition to liabilities, the statement of financial position includes a separate 
section for deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial element 
represents an acquisition of net positon that applies to future periods and so will 
not be recognized as an inflow of resources until then.   
 



MISSOURI HOUSING DEVELOPMENT COMMISSION 

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued) 
 
 

 

 Page 26 

Pensions 

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources 
and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension expense, 
information about the fiduciary net position of the pension plans administered by 
the Missouri State Employees’ Retirement System (MOSERS) and additions to and 
deductions from MOSERS’ fiduciary net position have been determined on the 
same basis as they are reported by MOSERS.  For this purpose, benefit payments 
are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms.  
Investments are reported at fair value.  
 
Other Postemployment Benefits (OPEB) 

For purposes of measuring the net OPEB liability, deferred outflows of resources 
and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB, and OPEB expense, 
information about the fiduciary net position of the State Retiree Welfare Benefit 
Trust (SRWBT) administered by the Missouri Consolidated Health Care Plan 
(MCHCP) and additions to and deductions from the SRWBT fiduciary net position 
have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by MCHCP. For this 
purpose, benefit payments are recognized when due and payable in accordance 
with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value. 
 
Net Position  

Net position represents the difference between assets and deferred outflows and 
liabilities and deferred inflows in the financial statements.  Net position is 
classified as follows: 
 

Net Investment in Capital Assets:  This component of net position consists 
of capital and lease assets, net of accumulated depreciation and amortization, 
net of related liabilities.   
 
Restricted Net Position:  This component of net position consists of 
restrictions placed on net position use through external constraints imposed 
by grant agreements and contracts, laws or regulations of other governments, 
bond resolutions or constraints imposed by law through constitutional 
provisions or enabling legislation. 
 
Unrestricted Net Position:  This component represents net position used at 
the discretion of the Board of Commissioners to complement bond and loan 
programs, to fund housing initiatives and to provide for the Commission’s 
operations.  Certain unrestricted net position has been designated by the 
Commission to provide for its housing programs.  Unrestricted net position 
provides additional security for the Commission’s general obligations and 
commitments.   
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Fees, Charges and Expenses 

Unearned revenue consists primarily of tax credit fees and compliance monitoring 
fees that are recognized as income over the contractual periods. 
 
Service and other fees and charges are recorded as income when earned and the 
associated administrative expenses are recorded as incurred. 
 
Operating expenses identifiable to a particular program are charged directly to the 
program.  All other operating expenses are accounted for by the Commission in the 
Operating Fund (see Note 2). 
 
Federal Assistance and Grants 

The Commission administers grants and federal assistance programs, 
representing “pass-through” financial assistance, on the behalf of secondary 
recipients. The Commission reports federal assistance deposits received in advance 
of incurring related expenditures as a liability presented on the statement of net 
position. The Commission recognizes financial activity related to pass-through 
grants and financial assistance as revenues and expenses of the Commission.  
Grants received from federal, state and local governments, and other organizations 
are recognized as operating revenue as the related expenditures are incurred.   
 
Debt Refunding 

For refundings resulting in defeasance of debt reported by proprietary activities, 
the difference between the reacquisition price and the net carrying amount of the 
old debt is deferred and amortized as a component of interest expense over the 
remaining life of the old or new debt, whichever is shorter, using the bonds 
outstanding method.  The deferred refunding amounts are classified as deferred 
inflows or deferred outflows of resources in the financial statements. 
 
New Accounting Standards 

The Commission implemented GASB Statement No. 87, Leases. This statement 
establishes a single model for lease accounting based on the foundational principle 
that leases are financings of the right to use an underlying asset. A lessee is 
required to recognize a lease liability and an intangible right-to-use lease asset. 
The cumulative effect of adopting GASB Statement No. 87 as of July 1, 2021 was 
a decrease of $55,000 in the Commission’s enterprise fund net investment in 
capital assets component of net position and an increase of $611,000 in the 
Commission’s enterprise fund unrestricted net position. 
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In addition, the Commission implemented GASB Statement No. 91, Conduit Debt 
Obligations. This statement provides a single method of reporting conduit debt 
obligations by issuers and eliminates diversity in practice associated with (1) 
commitments extended by issuers, (2) arrangements associated with conduit debt 
obligations, and (3) related note disclosures. GASB Statement No. 91 clarifies the 
existing definition of a conduit debt obligation; establishing that a conduit debt 
obligation is not a liability of the issuer. In accordance with this statement, the 
Commission has excluded the assets and liabilities related to its conduit debt from 
the statement of net position. There was no effect to the Commission’s enterprise 
fund net position. 
 
 

2. Description of Funds or Programs 
 
The following describes the funds or programs maintained by the Commission, all 
of which conform to Chapter 215 of the Missouri state statutes and the respective 
bond resolutions. 
 
Operating Fund 

Funding of the Operating Fund on an ongoing basis is derived principally from 
allowable transfers from other funds, fees earned for administering various U.S. 
Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) programs, and interest 
income from Operating Fund investments and mortgage loans. Mortgage and 
construction loans in the Operating Fund are collateralized by deeds of trust on 
the related properties, including approximately $15,302,000 at June 30, 2022, 
which are insured by HUD’s Federal Housing Administration (FHA) programs or 
guaranteed by the Veterans Administration (VA). These insured loans include 
$15,270,000 at June 30, 2022, which are FHA-insured “Risk-Share Mortgage 
Loans,” as described in Note 4.  Authorized activities of the Operating Fund include 
the following: 
 

• Payment of general and administrative expenses and other costs not 
payable by other funds of the Commission. 

• Financing multifamily or homeownership residential housing units from 
accumulated fund balances, if financing of such units is not provided for 
under existing bond indentures. 

• Those activities deemed necessary to fulfill the Commission’s corporate 
purposes for which special funds are not established. 
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The Commission administers the Missouri Housing Trust Fund, which provides 
for a variety of housing needs, such as emergency home repair, emergency rent, 
mortgage or utility payments, rehabilitation or new construction of housing 
facilities and related services for very low-income families and individuals.  The 
Missouri Housing Trust Fund is authorized by Section 215.034, RSMo and its 
financial activities are included in the financial statements of the Commission.  
Separate financial statements for the Missouri Housing Trust Fund may be 
obtained through the Commission. 
 
Multifamily Bond-Financed Program (2000 Indenture) 

The Commission’s Multifamily Bond-Financed Program (2000 Indenture) was 
established to support the financing and refinancing of eligible multifamily 
projects and includes funds and accounts to allocate the proceeds from the bond 
sales, receive payments on the related mortgage loans, provide for payment of the 
debt service requirements on the bonds and retain balances in reserves all 
pursuant to the Commission’s Trust Indenture dated as of June 1, 2000. All loans 
are insured by HUD, including HUD’s Risk-Share Program.  
  
Multifamily Bond-Financed Program (2014 Indenture) 

The Commission’s Multifamily Bond-Financed Program (2014 Indenture) was 
established to succeed the program established in 2000 with updated terms and 
flow of funds to support the financing and refinancing of eligible multifamily 
projects and includes funds and accounts to allocate the proceeds from the bond 
sales, receive payments on the related mortgage loans, provide for payment of the 
debt service requirements on the bonds and retain balances in reserves all 
pursuant to the Commission’s Trust Indenture dated as of April 1, 2014.  All loans 
are insured by HUD, including HUD’s Risk-Share Program.   
 
Special Homeownership Bond-Financed Program (2009 Indenture) 

The Commission’s Special Homeownership Bond-Financed Program was 
established under the United States Treasury’s Single Family New Issue Bond 
Program to support the financing of loans for low and moderate income 
homebuyers and includes funds and accounts to allocate the proceeds from the 
bond sales, receive payments on the related mortgage loans, provide for payment 
of the debt service requirements on the bonds and retain balances in reserves. The 
bonds are secured by mortgage-backed securities on eligible owner-occupied units 
pursuant to the Commission’s Trust Indenture dated as of December 1, 2009. The 
pledged mortgage-backed securities are guaranteed as to timely payment of 
principal and interest by GNMA, Fannie Mae or Freddie Mac. 
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First Place Homeownership Bond-Financed Program (2015 Indenture) 

The Commission’s First Place Homeownership Bond-Financed Program was 
established to succeed the Special Homeownership Bond-Financed Program due to 
specific restrictions imposed under the program established by the Treasury 
Department to support the financing of loans for low and moderate income 
homebuyers and includes funds and accounts to allocate the proceeds from the 
bond sales, receive payments on the related mortgage loans, provide for payment 
of the debt service requirements on the bonds and retain balances in reserves. The 
bonds are secured by mortgage-backed securities on eligible owner-occupied units 
pursuant to the Commission’s Trust Indenture dated as of May 1, 2015. The 
pledged mortgage-backed securities are guaranteed as to timely payment of 
principal and interest by GNMA, Fannie Mae or Freddie Mac. 
 
Fiduciary Funds 

In the course of its loan servicing, the Commission administers escrow and reserve 
funds held on behalf of its mortgagors. The funds are used to pay taxes and 
insurance on underlying mortgage property, held as reserve for replacements, or 
for other purposes. The funds received from the mortgagors are invested in 
accordance with the Commission’s investments guidelines and the assets are offset 
by a corresponding restricted net position for mortgagors. The cash and 
investments balance of the escrow funds was $106,729,000 as of June 30, 2022. 
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3. Cash and Investments 
 
A summary of cash and investments as of June 30, 2022 is as follows (in 
thousands): 

Enterprise Fund Cost Fair Value

Cash and cash equivalents:
Cash 183,658$   183,658$   
FHLB daily time accounts 452              452              
Repurchase agreements 202,239       202,239        
Money market funds 136,274       136,274        
U.S. Treasury bills 4,689           4,687           

Total cash and cash equivalents 527,312$   527,310$   

Investments:
U.S. Treasury bonds and notes

and agency obligations 331,547$   297,971$   
Total investments 331,547       297,971        

Total cash and cash equivalents
and investments 858,859$   825,281$   

2022

 
 

Fiduciary Fund Cost Fair Value

Cash and cash equivalents:
Cash 7,030$         7,030$       
Money market funds 750                 750               

Total cash and cash equivalents 7,780$         7,780$       

Investments:
U.S. Treasury bonds and notes

and agency obligations 110,895$      98,949$     
Total investments 110,895          98,949          

Total cash and cash equivalents
and investments 118,675$      106,729$   

2022
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Investment Policy 

General 

The Commission’s formal Investment Policy and Guidelines apply to investments 
that are not held by a trustee in connection with bond or note issues.  This policy 
permits the Commission to invest in obligations of the state of Missouri, obligations 
of the United States of America, obligations issued or guaranteed by certain agencies 
of the federal government, certain collateralized repurchase agreements and 
certificates of deposit. The general policy of the Commission is to make investments 
for future funding requirements and not for trading purposes.  At June 30, 2022, all 
of the Commission’s general investments (non-bond related investments) were in 
compliance with the Commission’s Investment Policy and Guidelines. 
 
Indentures 

The Commission’s bond indentures permit investments in the direct obligations of, 
or obligations guaranteed by, the United States of America, certificates of deposit, 
investment agreements and certain other investments permitted by applicable 
law. At June 30, 2022, all investments of debt-related issues held by the 
Commission’s trustees were in compliance with the requirements of the 
indentures. 
 
Investment Maturities 

As of June 30, 2022, the Commission had the following investments and maturities 
(in thousands): 
 

Enterprise Fund

Fair Less More
Investment Type Value Than 1 1 - 5 6 - 10 Than 10

U.S. Treasury securities 43,656$     33,011$    —$          9,490$      1,155$     
U.S. agency securities 254,315     6,405        67,665     180,245    —           

Total investments 297,971$    39,416$    67,665$   189,735$  1,155$     

Investment Maturities (in Years)
June 30, 2022
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Fiduciary Fund

Fair Less
Investment Type Value Than 1 1 - 5 6 - 10

U.S. Treasury securities 2,179$         —$            —$              2,179$         
U.S. agency securities 96,770         3,980         42,023         50,767         

Total investments 98,949$       3,980$        42,023$       52,946$       

June 30, 2022
Investment Maturities (in Years)

 
The Commission’s Investment Policy and Guidelines limit investments for general 
funds in repurchase agreements to 90 days and U.S. Treasury and U.S. agency 
securities to 10 years.  The bond resolutions and indentures allow for investments 
in obligations of the United States of America and investment agreements for the 
terms specified in these documents, generally 30 years. 
 
At June 30, 2022, as reported at fair value, the Commission’s enterprise fund U.S. 
agency securities consist of $123,607,000 Federal Farm Credit Bank (FFCB), 
$55,963,000 Federal Home Loan Bank (FHLB), $24,007,000 Fannie Mae, 
$33,482,000 Freddie Mac and $17,256,000 Farmer Mac debt securities.  At June 
30, 2022, as reported at fair value, the Commission’s fiduciary fund U.S. agency 
securities consist of $53,820,000 Federal Farm Credit Bank (FFCB), $12,850,000 
Federal Home Loan Bank (FHLB), $13,891,000 Fannie Mae and $16,209,000 
Freddie Mac debt securities. 
 
The Commission’s recurring fair value measurements include U.S. Treasury and 
government agency securities, valued using a multi-dimensional relational pricing 
model (Level 2 inputs).  These securities totaled $297,971,000 in the Commission’s 
enterprise fund and totaled $98,949,000 in the Commission’s fiduciary fund as of 
June 30, 2022.  
 
Interest Rate Risk 

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates may adversely affect the 
fair value of investments. The Commission manages interest rate risk by 
structuring investment portfolios so that securities mature to meet cash 
requirements for ongoing operations and debt service obligations, thereby avoiding 
the need to sell securities on the open market prior to maturity.  
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Credit Risk 

The Commission’s money market funds and investments include the securities of 
U.S. government agencies rated in the highest rating category by Moody’s Investor 
Services (Aaa) and AA+ by Standard & Poor’s. Repurchase agreements are 
unrated, but collateralized by U.S. agency securities. 
 
Concentration of Credit Risk 

The Commission places no limit on the amount it may invest in any one issuer with 
respect to U.S. Treasury and government agency securities. Obligations of the 
state of Missouri and collateralized certificates of deposit are limited to 60% of the 
non-bond fund portfolio, each.  Collateralized repurchase agreements are limited 
to 50% of the non-bond fund portfolio. The following tables list investments in 
issuers that represent 5% or more of total investments, which includes money 
market funds classified as cash equivalents at June 30, 2022: 
 

Enterprise Fund Percent of
Total

Issuer  Investments

Federal Farm Credit Bank (FFCB) 12.7%
Morgan Stanley Institutional Liquidity Funds Government Portfolio 21.2%
Federal Home Loan Bank (FHLB) 7.8%
U.S. Treasury 9.3%
Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation (Freddie Mac) 3.2%
UMB Bank 36.9%  

 
Fiduciary Fund Percent of

Total
Issuer  Investments

Federal Farm Credit Bank (FFCB) 54.4%
Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation (Freddie Mac) 16.4%
Fannie Mae 14.0%
Federal Home Loan Bank (FHLB) 13.0%  

 
Custodial Credit Risk 

For investments, custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of the failure of 
the counterparty to a transaction, the Commission will not be able to recover the 
value of its investments or collateral securities that are in the possession of an 
outside party. In accordance with its policy, the Commission addresses custodial 
credit risk by pre-qualifying institutions with which the Commission places 
investments, diversifying its investment portfolio and maintaining a standard of 
quality for its investments. 
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For deposits, custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the 
Commission may not be able to recover its deposits.  Protection of the Commission’s 
enterprise fund deposits of $183,658,000 and custodial fund deposits of $7,030,000 
at June 30, 2022 is provided by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation, FHLB 
letters of credit and by eligible securities pledged by the financial institution. 
Deposits in the Commission’s enterprise fund with the FHLB at June 30, 2022 
include $452,000 in a daily time account, which is uninsured and uncollateralized, 
but secured by the full faith and credit of the FHLB system with implicit 
government support.   
 
 

4. Mortgage Investments 
 
Mortgage investments reported consist of the following as of June 30, 2022 (in 
thousands): 

2022

Total mortgage loan principal outstanding 434,558$        
Less:    Allowance for mortgage loan losses (40,248)             

Mortgage loans, net 394,310             

Total mortgage-backed securities, at cost 1,122,996          
Unrealized loss on securitized mortgage loans (68,694)             

Mortgage-backed securities, at fair value 1,054,302          

Mortgage investments, net 1,448,612$     
 

 
Mortgages include loans financed by the federal HOME Investment Partnerships 
Program (HOME) totaling $227,099,000 as of June 30, 2022. A portion of these 
loans totaling $150,029,000 at June 30, 2022 include prepayment terms allowing 
deferment or repayment based on net income of the multifamily developments.  An 
estimated allowance for mortgage loan losses of $21,938,000 is attributable to this 
portfolio at June 30, 2022.  In addition, there were $38,921,000 in mortgages 
outstanding at June 30, 2022 that have continuing compliance requirements and 
convert to grants upon maturity and satisfaction of program requirements. Such 
mortgages are recognized as expenditures at the time of disbursement. At June 30, 
2022, mortgages also include $26,854,000 in loans financed by the federal Tax 
Credit Assistance Program (TCAP). An estimated allowance for mortgage loan 
losses of $3,638,000 is attributable to this portfolio at June 30, 2022. 
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The Commission warehouses mortgage-backed securities created by its single 
family homeownership programs.  The warehoused securities have been funded by 
short-term FHLB advances or available net position.  U.S. agency securities, which 
totaled $57,794,000 at June 30, 2022 are pledged as collateral for the short-term 
FHLB advances. There were warehoused mortgage-backed securities totaling 
$60,000 held at June 30, 2022. 
 
The single family bond-financed programs generally require that mortgage loans 
be made to borrowers whose household income does not exceed the statewide or 
applicable metropolitan statistical area (MSA) median income, based on family 
size.  For loans financed with tax-exempt bond proceeds (First Place loans), Section 
143 of the Internal Revenue Code specifies certain requirements with respect to 
the nature of the residence, mortgage and eligibility of the borrower. These 
programs provide funding for mortgage loans that are FHA insured, VA 
guaranteed, U.S. Department of Agriculture/Rural Development (USDA/RD) 
guaranteed or Freddie Mac-qualified or Fannie Mae-qualified conventional loans. 
 
The Commission finances eligible homebuyers, including non-first time 
homebuyers, with mortgage loans (Next Step program) financed at predetermined 
daily prices via the taxable To-Be-Announced (TBA) market in accordance with an 
agreement with a third-party administrator.  Next Step mortgage-backed 
securities (MBS) delivered totaled $40,866,000 during fiscal year 2022. 
 
The multifamily bond-financed programs provide long-term financing for rental 
housing developments for occupancy by families and persons of low and moderate 
incomes.  The Commission has entered into an agreement with HUD, which 
permits the Commission to participate in HUD’s Risk-Share Program. In 
accordance with the terms of this agreement, HUD will insure certain mortgage 
loans on rental housing developments (FHA-insured “Risk-Share Mortgage 
Loans”) and the Commission will underwrite the Risk-Share Mortgage Loans 
following its underwriting guidelines.  HUD will insure the Risk-Share Mortgage 
Loans and will bear 50% of the risk and the Commission will bear the remaining 
50% of the risk. The Commission had Risk-Share Mortgage Loans totaling 
$49,061,000, representing 34 loans as of June 30, 2022. 
 
Proceeds of multifamily and single family mortgage revenue bonds, as indicated in 
Note 5, as well as resources of the Commission’s mortgage-backed security 
warehousing program were used to purchase GNMA, Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac 
certificates collateralized by mortgage loans approved in accordance with the 
guidelines of the Commission’s mortgage programs.  The financing periods of the 
pooled mortgage loans are 30 years.  Mortgage-backed securities have repayments 
based on the underlying pooled mortgages and are subject to prepayment. 
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The fair value of the mortgage-backed securities is sensitive to changes in interest 
rates, which may result in large fluctuations in carrying value and investment 
earnings as reported.  The mortgage-backed securities held at June 30, 2022 have 
stated interest rates ranging from 1.75% to 7.50%, while the underlying mortgages 
have stated interest rates ranging from 2.25% to 8.00%. 
 
GNMA, Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac certificates, which are included in mortgage 
investment balances, are presented in the statement of net position at fair value.  
These mortgage-backed securities are guaranteed as to payment of principal and 
interest by GNMA, Fannie Mae or Freddie Mac.  As of June 30, 2022, the par value 
of securitized mortgage loans consist of 83.4% GNMA, 6.5% Fannie Mae and 10.1% 
Freddie Mac certificates.  All other loans included in mortgage investments are 
carried at cost.  The following summarizes the carrying value and cost of mortgage 
investments as of June 30, 2022 (in thousands): 
  

Carrying
Value Cost

GNMA, Fannie Mae and 
Freddie Mac mortgage-backed 
securities  $      1,054,302  $      1,122,996 

Other mortgage loans             434,558             451,484 

Total mortgage investments  $      1,488,860  $      1,574,480 

2022

 
 

The Commission’s recurring fair value measurements as of June 30, 2022 include 
the GNMA, Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac certificates totaling $1,054,302,000 
valued using a matrix pricing technique, which utilizes pricing indices, index 
spreads and other market reference data (Level 2 inputs). 
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5. Bonds Payable and Long-Term Obligations 
 
The following table provides a summary of the changes in long-term obligations for 
the year ended June 30, 2022 (in thousands): 
 

Amount
Balance Balance Due
June 30, June 30, Within

2021 Increases Decreases 2022 One Year
Publicly Sold Bonds
Multifamily Bond-Financed 

  Program (2000 Indenture) 20,450$         —$               (3,060)$         17,390$         800$             
Multifamily Bond-Financed 

  Program (2014 Indenture) 26,556          —                 (10,186)         16,370          696               
Special Homeownership 

Bond-Financed Program (2009 Indenture) 47,716          —                 (15,317)         32,399          1,841            
First Place Homeownership 

Bond-Financed Program (2015 Indenture) 953,218         295,000         (208,183)        1,040,035      26,335          
Total Publicly Sold 1,047,940      295,000         (236,746)        1,106,194      29,672          

Direct Borrowings and Direct Placements
Operating Fund - Direct Borrowings 27,474          529,578         (557,052)        —                 —                 
Total Direct Borrowings and Direct Placements 27,474          529,578         (557,052)        —                 —                 

Total bonds and notes payable 1,075,414      824,578         (793,798)        1,106,194      29,672          

Unamortized premium and discount, net 30,457          9,447            (8,127)           31,777          905               

Total bonds and notes payable, net 1,105,871      834,025         (801,925)        1,137,971      30,577          

Lease liability 3,360            —                 (770)              2,590            673               
Unearned revenue 8,849            2,532            (2,136)           9,245            1,373            
Total long-term debt and other

obligations 1,118,080$    836,557$       (804,831)$      1,149,806$    32,623$         
 

 
The net proceeds of bond issues for both publicly sold bonds and direct placements 
are used to provide financing for multifamily bond-financed housing projects or for 
homeownership residential housing units. The bond proceeds are deposited with 
and invested by bank trust departments in qualified investments until required 
for such financing. These bonds are obligations of the Commission payable from 
the mortgage investments and funds specifically pledged to the payment of the 
bonds and are not liabilities of the state of Missouri.   
 
Multifamily bonds are secured by a pledge of the mortgages and mortgage loans, 
funds and investments held under each applicable indenture. The mortgage loans 
held by the 2000 and 2014 Indentures are insured by HUD, including HUD’s Risk-
Share Program. Single family bonds are secured by pledged mortgage-backed 
securities, funds and investments held under each applicable indenture. The 
pledged mortgage-backed securities consist of pools of mortgages originated in 
accordance with the Commission’s loan programs and are guaranteed as to timely 
payment of principal and interest by GNMA, Fannie Mae or Freddie Mac. 
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Under the terms of the bond indentures, an event of default occurs if payment of 
principal or interest is not made when due or in the event the Commission does 
not comply with one or more covenants in or related to the bond indenture and fails 
to cure the noncompliance within specified timeframes. If an event of default is not 
resolved, the trustee can take actions to protect and enforce the rights of the 
bondholders, including enforcement of rights under the mortgages or mortgage-
backed securities and declaring all applicable outstanding bonds due and payable. 
 
A summary of bonds payable outstanding at June 30, 2022 follows (in thousands), 
including the applicable calendar date reference for future maturities or final 
redemption: 

Original
Amount

Authorized 2022

Multifamily Bond-Financed Program (2000 Indenture)
2012 Series 1 Refunding Bonds (3.723% to 4.25%), due 2028-2038 42,740$         2,685$             

2013 Series 1 Friendship Village (2.50% to 3.75%), due 2022 - 2045 6,555              2,730               

2013 Series 2 Refunding Bonds (3.20% to 4.625%), due 2022-2040 15,560            4,125               

2013 Series 3 Shepard Apts. (3.25% to 5.00%), due 2022-2045 12,030            6,320               
2013 Series 4 House Springs Apts. (3.125% to 5.00%) due 2022-2045 2,555              1,530               

79,440            17,390             

Add:   Unamortized debt premium 86                     

79,440            17,476             

Multifamily Bond - Financed Program (2014 Indenture)
2014 Series 1 Refunding Bonds  (4.20%), due 2040 23,742$         2,973$             
2015 Series 1 Refunding Bonds  (3.75%), due 2042 12,120            2,262               

2021 Series 1 Refunding Bonds  (2.20%), due 2042 11,503            11,135             

47,365            16,370             

Total Multifamily Bond - Financed Programs 126,805         33,846             

Special Homeownership Bond - Financed Program (2009 Indenture)

Publicly Sold Bonds:
2014 Series A (2.50% to 4.00%), due 2022 - 2041* 50,000$         7,735$             
2014 Series B (2.50% to 4.00%), due 2022 - 2040* 50,000            9,355               

2014 Series C (2.97%), due 2036* 40,579            7,361               

2016 Series C (2.40%), due 2044* 31,503            7,948               

172,082         32,399             

Add:  Unamortized debt premium 498                  

172,082         32,897             

Outstanding
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Original
Amount

Authorized 2022
Outstanding

 
First Place Homeownership Bond - Financed

Program (2015 Indenture)
2015 Series A (2.25% to 3.75%), due 2022 - 2038* 60,000$         9,270$             
2015 Series B-1 (4.00%), due 2045* 23,090            3,335               
2015 Series B-2 (2.45% to 4.00%), due 2022 - 2045* 50,000            6,690               
2015 Series C (4.00%), due 2036* 56,000            5,625               
2016 Series A-2 (1.85% to 4.00%), due 2022 - 2040* 70,000            15,745             
2016 Series B (1.50% to 3.50%), due 2022 - 2041* 70,000            20,840             
2016 Series D (3.40%), due 2046* 51,489            20,862             
2017 Series A-1 (4.00%), due 2042* 14,400            6,755               
2017 Series A-2 (1.80% to 4.00%), due 2022 - 2042* 50,000            14,490             
2017 Series B (3.25%), due 2047* 54,241            21,871             
2017 Series C (3.30%), due 2047* 53,939            24,386             
2017 Series D (2.10% to 4.00%), due 2022 - 2047* 54,500            28,400             
2018 Series A (2.10% to 4.25%), due 2022 - 2049* 55,000            30,995             
2018 Series B (2.50% to 4.75%), due 2022 - 2049* 70,000            42,535             
2019 Series A (1.90% to 4.25%), due 2022 - 2047* 65,000            38,425             
2019 Series B (1.55% to 4.00%), due 2022 - 2050* 80,000            54,090             
2019 Series C (1.40% to 3.875%), due 2022 - 2050* 120,000         92,925             
2020 Series A (1.10% to 3.50%), due 2022 - 2050* 100,000         84,045             
2020 Series B  (2.25% to 2.625%) due 2043* 75,470            38,534             
2020 Series C  (0.45% to 3.50%) due 2022 - 2050* 55,000            48,195             
2020 Series D  (0.30% to 3.25%) due 2022 - 2051* 50,000            43,610             
2020 Series E  (1.85% to 2.00%) due 2050* 33,400            27,972             
2021 Series A  (0.20% to 3.00%) due 2022 - 2052* 75,000            68,170             
2021 Series B  (0.15% to 3.00%) due 2022 - 2052* 65,000            62,635             
2021 Series C  (0.20% to 3.25%) due 2022 - 2052* 75,000            74,635             
2022 Series A  (1.00% to 3.50%) due 2023 - 2052* 75,000            75,000             
2022 Series B  (2.05% to 4.75%) due 2023 - 2052* 80,000            80,000             

1,681,529      1,040,035       
Less:   Unamortized debt discount (97)                   
Add:   Unamortized debt premium 31,290             

1,681,529      1,071,228       

Total S ingle Family Bond - Financed Programs 1,853,611      1,104,125       

 Total bonds payable, net 1,980,416$    1,137,971$      
 

The proceeds of bond issues denoted by “*” are used to purchase GNMA, Fannie 
Mae and Freddie Mac mortgage-backed securities, which are backed by mortgage 
loans originated through the Commission’s loan programs.  
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During the fiscal years ended June 30, 2022, the Commission redeemed, prior to 
their scheduled maturity, the principal amount of certain of its bonds.  Net gains 
of $2,275,000 for the year ended June 30, 2022 on early extinguishment of debt 
have been recorded and included with other income. These gains arise as a result 
of immediate recognition of bond premiums, net of immediate recognition of bond 
discounts, that would have been amortized over the life of the applicable bond issue 
if not retired and net of call premiums as required by the applicable bond 
indentures.   

 
Conduit Debt Obligations 

The Commission is authorized to issue conduit revenue bonds to provide financing 
for multifamily rental housing developments. These bonds are limited obligation, 
conduit debt issued by the Commission, secured by a mortgage and payable solely 
from payments made pursuant to the loan agreement. Payments on the bonds do 
not constitute a general obligation payable from funds of the Commission. 
Accordingly, the bonds are not reported as liabilities in the Commission’s 
statement of net position. The Commission had $16,926,000 in conduit bonds at 
June 30, 2022. 
 
Direct Borrowings – Operating Fund 

In addition to bonds payable, the Commission utilizes short-term FHLB advances, 
which are secured by pledged U.S. agency securities and mortgage-backed 
securities. The FHLB can dispose of all or a portion of such securities for purposes 
of collecting payment of principal and interest on an advance in the event of a 
payment default. There were no advances outstanding at June 30, 2022. The short-
term FHLB advances included rollover financings of $379,193,000 in fiscal year 
2022.  
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Bond and Long-term Obligation Maturities 

All bonds have early redemption provisions. A summary of future annual scheduled 
principal and interest maturities for the Commission’s long-term obligations, which 
excludes unamortized debt discounts and premiums, follows (in thousands): 
 

Bonds Maturing
During Years
Ending June 30, Principal Interest Total

2023 29,672$      33,915$      63,587$      
2024 29,256        33,689        62,945        
2025 30,158        32,973        63,131        
2026 31,036        32,183        63,219        
2027 31,892        31,335        63,227        
2028 - 2032 174,935      142,096      317,031      
2033 - 2037 206,179      112,764      318,943      
2038 - 2042 218,758      78,356        297,114      
2043 - 2047 225,442      42,698        268,140      
2048 - 2052 127,466      8,950         136,416      
2053 - 2057 1,400         28              1,428         

1,106,194$ 548,987$    1,655,181$ 

Publicly Sold Bonds

 
 

Lease Liability 

The Commission leases office space in Kansas City in accordance with a ten-year 
lease and in St. Louis in accordance with an 11-year lease.  The Commission also 
leases storage space in Kansas City in accordance with a three-year lease.  The 
total value of these lease assets was $4,046,000 and the related accumulated 
amortization was $1,482,000 at June 30, 2022. Future principal and interest 
requirements, using an incremental borrowing rate of 1%, to maturity for the lease 
liability as of June 30, 2022 are as follows (in thousands): 

 
Year Principal Interest Total

2023 673$    23$   696$    
2024 751            18              769            
2025 548            10              558            
2026 304            6                310            
2027 314            2                316            

2,590$  59$   2,649$  
 

 



MISSOURI HOUSING DEVELOPMENT COMMISSION 

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued) 
 
 

 

 Page 43 

6. Escrow Deposits and Rent Subsidies Payable 
 
Escrow deposits in the fiduciary fund represent funds paid by project mortgagees 
for real estate taxes, insurance, future replacement of property and other costs. 
 
Federal housing subsidy and other deposits reported on the Commission’s statement 
of net position represent federal funds received in advance for emergency rental 
assistance, payment of rent subsidies and for other programs. 
 
 

7. Restrictions and Designations 
 
Restricted Cash and Investments 

Substantially all of the assets of each bond program of the Commission are pledged 
as collateral for the payment of principal and interest on bond indebtedness of that 
program.  Therefore, all related bond program assets of the Commission that are 
pledged as collateral are treated as restricted and noncurrent.  The obligations of 
the Commission are not obligations of the State and the State is not liable for such 
obligations. The trust indentures between the Commission and the trustees 
establish special accounts for the segregation of assets and restrictions on the use 
of bond proceeds and certain other funds received. 
 
Resolutions of the Commission require that, to the extent funds are available in 
the general account of each bond fund, the funds are to be transferred to a debt 
service account on a periodic basis, from the date of bond issuance to the date of 
each succeeding maturity, sufficient to make principal and interest payments on 
the bonds as they become due.  Funds within the general account of each bond fund 
are on deposit in restricted accounts. 
 
The statute and resolutions of the Commission require that for certain bond issues 
an amount be maintained in reserve accounts to be used to make principal and 
interest payments on payment due dates.  Such amounts are on deposit in 
restricted accounts for the various issues within the multifamily and single family 
mortgage revenue bond programs. 
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Restricted investments include U.S. agency securities pledged as collateral for 
short-term FHLB advances. Pursuant to state statute, the Commission has also 
restricted cash and investments held for the Missouri Housing Trust Fund.  In 
addition, cash and investments held associated with federal grant agreements are 
restricted. These funds include deposits for rental assistance received in 
accordance with the Consolidated Appropriations Act, homeowner assistance 
funds received in accordance with the American Rescue Plan Act and other federal 
programs. 
 
As of June 30, 2022, the assets of all accounts satisfied the requirements as 
established by the trust indentures, applicable agreements and state statute.  Such 
assets are restricted as follows (in thousands): 
 

2022

Program restricted funds and pledged investments 81,579$      
Federal Program Funds 401,358              
Missouri Housing Trust Fund 3,599                  
Bond Proceeds Accounts - funds for purchase of qualified

mortgage-backed securities or mortgage loans 
and payment of costs of issuance 80,368                

Revenue and Debt Service Funds - program revenues 
for debt services payments 46,210                

Debt Service and Other Bond Reserve Accounts - reserves
held as required by bond indentures, including: debt
service reserves, mortgage reserves and capitalized interest 16,782                

629,896$    
 

 
Restricted Net Position 

Pursuant to certain bond resolutions, the Commission has restricted the net 
position of the multifamily and single family mortgage revenue bond programs to 
maintain a level of reserves necessary to provide sound fiscal operations. U.S. 
agency securities and mortgage-backed securities are pledged as collateral for 
short-term FHLB advances. In addition, net position associated with the federal 
grant agreements of HOME and TCAP are restricted. In fiscal year 1997, the 
Commission acquired a portfolio of loans from HUD. Revenues collected from these 
HUD-purchased loans are restricted by an agreement between the Commission 
and HUD to be used primarily for rehabilitation loans or grants. 
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Pursuant to state statute, the Commission has restricted the amount of net 
position representing revenues over expenses related to the financial activity of 
the Missouri Housing Trust Fund. Revenues of the Missouri Housing Trust Fund 
are restricted to programs that financially assist, through loans or grants, the 
development of housing stock and that provide housing assistance to persons and 
families with incomes at or below specified levels. 
 
Below is a summary of restricted net position by bond resolution and state statute 
as of June 30, 2022 (in thousands): 
 

2022
Restricted Net Position

Restricted by bond resolution 93,208$          
Restricted by collateral custodial agreement - FHLB 57,794               
Restricted by grant agreement - HOME Investment 
   Partnership Program 256,799             
Restricted by grant agreement - Housing Trust Fund 11                      
Restricted by grant agreement - TCAP 28,005               
Restricted earnings of HUD-purchased Loans 12,426               
Restricted by state statute - Missouri Housing
   Trust Fund 3,607                 

Total Restricted Net Position 451,850$        
 

 
Commission Designated Net Position 

The Commission has designated certain unrestricted net position for its affordable 
housing programs.  The Commission has the discretion to reverse any designated 
net position and as of June 30, 2022, has designated the following amounts (in 
thousands): 
 

2022
Designated by Commission for:

Tenant assistance 1,571$          
Loans not funded by a bond sale 120,421           
Construction loan commitments 47,000             
Loan and other commitments not yet disbursed 25,808             
Single Family Homeownership Program 20,000             
Single Family Cash Assistance Program 21,500             
Rural Initiative Program 582                 

Total Commission Designated Net Position 236,882$      
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8. Pension Plan 
 
General Information about the Pension Plan 
 
Plan description.  Benefit eligible employees of the Commission are provided 
pensions through Missouri State Employees’ Plan (MSEP) -  cost-sharing multiple-
employer defined benefit pension plans administered by MOSERS. The plans are 
referred to as MOSERS throughout the Notes. Section 104.320 of the Revised 
Statutes of Missouri grants the authority to establish a defined benefit plan for 
eligible state and other related Commission employees. MOSERS issues a Annual 
Comprehensive Financial Report (ACFR), a publicly available financial report that 
can be obtained at www.mosers.org. 
 
Benefits provided.  MOSERS provides retirement, disability, and life insurance 
benefits to eligible employees. The base retirement benefits are calculated by 
multiplying the employee’s final average pay by a specific factor multiplied by the 
years of credited service.  The factor is based on the specific plan in which the 
employee participates, which is based on the employee’s hire date.  Information on 
the three plans administered by MOSERS (MSEP, MSEP 2000, and MSEP 2011 
retirement plans) and how eligibility and the benefit amount is determined for 
each plan may be found in the Notes to the Financial Statements of MOSERS’ 
ACFR starting on page 31. 
 
Contributions. Per Section 104.436 of the Revised Statutes of Missouri, 
contribution requirements of the active employees and the participating employers 
are established and may be amended by the MOSERS Board. Employees in the 
MSEP 2011 Plan are required to contribute 4.0% of their annual pay. The 
Commission’s required contribution rate for the year ended June 30, 2022 was 
23.51% of annual payroll, which totaled $1,684,000, actuarially determined as an 
amount that, when combined with employee contributions, is expected to finance 
the costs of benefits earned by employees during the year, with an additional 
amount to finance the unfunded accrued liability.  Contributions to the pension 
plan from the Commission were $1,332,000 for MOSERS plan year ended June 30, 
2021. 
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Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of 
Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions 

At June 30, 2022, the Commission reported a liability of $16,154,000 for its 
proportionate share of the net pension liability. The net pension liability was 
measured as of June 30, 2021 and the total pension liability used to calculate the 
net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date. The 
total pension liability as of June 30, 2021 was offset by the fiduciary net position 
obtained from the MOSERS ACFR as of June 30, 2021 to determine the net pension 
liability. 
 
The Commission’s proportion of the net pension liability was based on the 
Commission’s actual share of contributions to the pension plan relative to the 
actual contributions of all participating employers for MOSERS plan year ended 
June 30, 2021. At the June 30, 2021 measurement date, the Commission’s 
proportion was 0.28894%, a slight increase from 0.27947%, as of the June 30, 2020 
measurement date.  
 
There were no changes in benefit terms during the MOSERS plan year ended 
June 30, 2021 that affected the measurement of total pension liability. 
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Actuarial Assumptions 

The total pension liability in the June 30, 2021 actuarial valuation, which is also 
the date of measurement for financial reporting purposes, was determined using 
the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the 
measurement:  
 

Summary of Key Actuarial Assumptions 
 
Valuation date 
 

June 30, 2021 

Actuarial cost method Entry age normal 
  
Asset valuation method Market value 
  
Investment rate of return 6.95% 

 
Projected salary increases  2.75% to 10.00%  

 
Rate of payroll growth 2.25% 

 
COLAs 4.00%/1.80%* 

 
Price inflation 2.25% 

 
* 4.00% compounded annually, when a minimum COLA of 4.00% is in effect. 
1.80% compounded annually, when no minimum COLA is in effect (80% of 
price inflation). 
 
 

An actuarial experience study covering the five-year period ended June 30, 2020, 
was performed in 2021. Certain actuarial assumptions and methods were changed 
as a result of the experience study, including: 

•  Subsequent changes in the unfunded actuarial accrued liability due to 
actuarial gains/losses or assumption changes are now amortized over a closed 
25 year period, instead of 30 years. 

•  Mortality assumptions are now based on generational tables. 
•  The merit component of the salary increase assumption was adjusted to 

partially reflect observed experience. 
 
Mortality 

Pre-retirement mortality rates were based on the Pub-2010 General Members 
Below Median Employee mortality table, set back two years for males and set 
forward one year for females. Mortality was projected generationally from 2010 to 
2020 using Scale MP-2020 and 75% of Scale MP-2020 for years after 2020.  
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Post-retirement mortality rates for retirees were based on the Pub-2010 General 
Members Below Median Healthy Retiree mortality table, scaled by 104%, set back 
two years for males and set forward one year for females. Mortality projected 
generationally from 2010 to 2020 using Scale MP-2020 and 75% of Scale MP-2020 
for years after 2020.  
 
Post-retirement mortality rates for beneficiaries were based on the Pub-2010 
General Members Below Median Contingent Survivor mortality table, set back two 
years for males and set forward one year for females. Mortality was projected 
generationally from 2010 to 2020 using Scale MP-2020 and 75% of Scale MP-2020 
for years after 2020. 
 
Long-term Investment Rate of Return 

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was 
determined using a building-block method in which best-estimates rates of 
expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of pension plan 
investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These 
ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting 
the expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage 
and by adjusting for expected inflation, volatility and correlations. Best estimates 
of the real rates of return expected are summarized by asset class in the following 
table: 
 

Weighted Average
Policy Long-Term Expected Long-Term Expected Long-Term Expected

Asset Class Allocation Nominal Return * Real Return Nominal Return
Global public equities 30.0% 7.7% 5.8% 2.3%
Global private equities 15.0% 9.3% 7.4% 1.4%
Long treasuries 25.0% 3.5% 1.6% 0.9%
Core bonds 10.0% 3.1% 1.2% 0.3%
Commodities 5.0% 5,5% 3.6% 0.3%
TIPS 25.0% 2.7% 0.8% 0.7%
Private real assets 5.0% 7.1% 5.2% 0.3%
Public real assets 5.0% 7.7% 5.8% 0.4%
Hedge funds 5.0% 4.8% 2.9% 0.2%
Alternative beta 10.0% 5.3% 3.4% 0.5%
Private credit 5.0% 9.5% 7.6% 0.5%
Cash and cash equivalents** -40.0% - - -

100.0%

Correlation/Volatility Adjustment -0.6%
Long-Term Expected Net Nominal Return 7.2%

Less: Investment Inflation Assumption -1.9%
Long-Term Expected Geometric Net Real Return 5.3%

Long-Term Expected Rate of Return

 
*   Long-term expected arithmetic returns of the asset classes at the time of the asset allocation 

study for each portfolio. 
** Cash and cash equivalents policy allocation amounts are negative due to use of leverage. 
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Discount Rate 

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 6.95%. The 
projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that 
contributions from participating employers will be made using the actuarially 
determined rates. Based on those assumptions, MOSERS’ fiduciary net position 
was projected to be available to make all the projected future benefit payments of 
the current plan members. As a result, the long-term expected rate of return on 
pension plan investments of 6.95% was applied to all periods of projected benefit 
payments to determine the total pension liability.  
 
Sensitivity of the Commission’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension 
Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate 

The following presents the Commission’s proportionate share of the net pension 
liability calculated using the discount rate of 6.95%, as well as what the 
Commission’s proportionate share of the net pension liability would be if it were 
calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower (5.95%) or 1-
percentage-point higher (7.95%) than the current rate: 
 

Current

1% Decrease  Discount Rate 1% Increase

(5.95%) (6.95%) (7.95%)

Commission's proportionate share of 

   net pension liability (in thousands) 21,291$       16,154$       11,864$       
 

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position  

Detailed information about the pension plan’s fiduciary net position is available in 
the separately issued MOSERS annual comprehensive financial report.  
 
Pension Expense 

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022, the Commission recognized pension 
expense of $1,814,000. 
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Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources 

At June 30, 2022, the Commission reported deferred outflows of resources and 
deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from the following sources (in 
thousands):  

Deferred Deferred
Outflows of Inflows of

June 30, 2022 Resources Resources

Differences between expected and actual experience 257$        71$         
Changes of assumptions 1,130                —                       
Net difference between projected and actual
   earnings on pension plan investments —                      2,912                  
Changes in proportion and differences between 
   Commission contributions and proportionate 
   share of contributions 370                   185                     
Commission contributions subsequent to 
   the measurement date of 6-30-21 1,684                —                       

 Total 3,441$     3,168$    
 

 

$1,684,000 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting 
from Commission contributions subsequent to the measurement date of June 30, 
2021 will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the 
Commission’s financial statements for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2023.  Other 
amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of 
resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense in the 
Commission’s fiscal year following MOSERS’ fiscal year as follows (in thousands):  
 

Commission's
Fiscal Year Ending
June 30: Amount

2023 88$             
2024 146                   
2025 (780)                  
2026 (865)                  

Total (1,411)$       
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Payables to the Pension Plan 

The Commission had a payable to MOSERS of $84,000 as of June 30, 2022, 
included as a component of accrued liabilities due to contribution obligations 
related to compensation incurred prior to the fiscal year end.   
 
 

9. Deferred Compensation Plan 
 
The Commission’s employees may participate in the State of Missouri Deferred 
Compensation Plan, a voluntary defined contribution plan offered in compliance 
with IRS Code Sections 457 and 401(a). The plan is administered by MOSERS in 
accordance with Sections 105.900 to 105.927 of the Revised Statutes of Missouri. 
Participant account record keeping and processing services is administered by a 
third party. Under this plan, employees are permitted to defer a portion of their 
current salary until future years. 
 
 

10. Other Postemployment Benefits 
 
General Information about the OPEB Plan 
 
Plan Description. The State Retiree Welfare Benefit Trust (SRWBT), a cost-
sharing multiple employer, defined benefit OPEB plan, is administered by the 
Missouri Consolidated Health Care Plan (MCHCP).  Employees may participate 
at retirement if eligible to receive a monthly retirement benefit from MOSERS or 
another retirement system whose members are grandfathered for coverage under 
the plan by law. The terms and conditions governing postemployment benefits, are 
vested with the MCHCP Board of Trustees within the authority granted under 
Chapter 103 of the Revised Statutes of Missouri. Financial information for the 
OPEB plan is included in MCHCP’s ACFR which is available on the MCHCP 
website at www.mchcp.org. 
 
Benefits Provided. Benefit provisions of the SRWBT provide postemployment 
healthcare coverage. Employees and their eligible dependents may participate in 
state-sponsored medical coverage in retirement based on plan criteria. Medical 
coverage, including prescription coverage, is provided through plan options 
including a qualified high deductible plan with health savings account and 
preferred provider organization plans (PPO 1250 and PPO 750). Health care 
benefits are funded through both employer and retiree contributions.  
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Contributions. Contributions are established and may be amended by the 
MCHCP Board of Trustees within the authority granted under Chapter 103 of the 
Revised Statutes of Missouri (2000) as amended (“RSMo”) 103.003 through 
103.178.  For each year of a retiree’s service, 2.5% of the monthly PPO 1250 
healthcare plan premium is contributed on behalf of the retiree up to a maximum 
contribution of 65%.  The retiree pays the balance of the premiums. Participants 
contributed $43,300,000 toward their required contributions for the plan year 
ended June 30, 2021. The Commission’s required contribution rate for the fiscal 
year ended June 30, 2022 ranged from 4.29% to 4.34% of annual payroll, which 
totaled $290,000 in contributions actuarially determined as an amount that, when 
combined with participant contributions, is expected to finance the costs of benefits 
earned by employees during the year, with an additional amount to finance any 
unfunded accrued liability. Contributions to the OPEB plan from the Commission 
were $229,000 for the plan year ended June 30, 2021. 
 
OPEB Liabilities, OPEB Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources 
and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to OPEB 

At June 30, 2022, the Commission reported a liability of $5,242,000 for its 
proportionate share of the net OPEB liability. The net OPEB liability was 
measured as of June 30, 2021 and the total OPEB liability used to calculate the 
net OPEB liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date. The 
Commission’s proportion of the net OPEB liability was determined by dividing 
each employer’s statutorily required OPEB contributions to the system during the 
measurement period by the percent of OPEB contributions required from all 
applicable employers during the measurement period. At the June 30, 2021 
measurement date, the Commission’s proportion was 0.3073%, a slight 
increase from 0.3061% as of the June 30, 2020 measurement date. 
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For the fiscal years ending June 30, 2022, the Commission recognized OPEB 
expense of $245,000. At June 30, 2022, the Commission reported deferred outflows 
of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB from the following 
sources: 

Deferred Deferred

Outflows of Inflows of

June 30, 2022 Resources Resources

Differences between expected and actual experience 211$       56$         

Changes of assumptions —                         655                      

Net difference between projected and actual

   earnings on pension plan investments —                         16                        

Changes in proportion and differences between employer

   contributions and proportionate share of contributions 98                        406                      

Commission contributions subsequent to 

   the measurement date of 6-30-21 290                      —                      

 Total 599$       1,133$    

 
$290,000 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to OPEB resulting 
from Commission contributions subsequent to the measurement date of June 30, 
2021 will be recognized as a reduction of the net OPEB liability in the 
Commission’s financial statements for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2023. Other 
amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of 
resources related to OPEB will be recognized in OPEB expense as follows: 
 

Commission's

Fiscal Year Ending
June 30: Amount

2023 (127)$    
2024 (129)                  
2025 (130)                  
2026 (132)                  
2027 (140)                  
Thereafter (166)                  

Total (824)$    
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Actuarial Methods and Assumptions 

The actuarial calculations utilize methodologies and assumptions designed to 
reduce short-term volatility. Actuarial valuations are developed based upon 
economic assumptions that are appropriate for the purpose of the measurements, 
take into account relevant historical and current data, reflect estimates of future 
experience, are free of bias, and include demographic actuarial assumptions that 
are considered to be reasonable and within a best projection range as described by 
the Actuarial Standards of Practice. Future actuarial measurements may differ 
from the current measurements due to many factors, including plan experience 
differing from that anticipated by the economic or demographic assumptions and 
changes in plan provisions or applicable law. 
 
Projections include a broad array of complex social and economic events, such as 
the emergence of new and expensive medical procedures and prescription drug 
options, change in investment rates of return, and other uncertainties. As such, 
the estimate of post-retirement program cost contains considerable uncertainty 
and variability, and actual experience may vary significantly from the current 
estimated obligation.  
 
The cost method utilized for the valuation year June 30, 2021, was the entry age 
normal, level percent of pay. The following presents additional information as of 
the latest actuarial valuation:  
 
Summary of Key Actuarial Methods & Assumptions

Valuation Year July 1, 2020 - June 30, 2021

Actuarial Cost Method Entry age normal, level percent of pay

Amortization method for Unfunded Actuarial 
Accrued Liability

30 years, open, level percent of pay

Asset valuation method Market value

Discount Rate 4.50%

Projected payroll growth rate 4.00%

Inflation Rate 3.00%

Health Care Cost Trend Rate (Medical and Prescription Drugs combined):

Non-Medicare is 6.50% for Fiscal 2022; the rate decreases by 0.25% per year to an ultimate rate of 5.0% in
Fiscal 2028 and later. Medicare 9.00% in fiscal year 2022, 13.50% in fiscal 2023, 12.50% in fiscal 2024, 11.50%
in fiscal 2025, 10.50 % in fiscal 2026, 9.75% in fiscal 2027, 9.00% in fiscal 2028, 8.25% in fiscal 2029, 7.50% in
fiscal 2030, 6.75% in fiscal 2031, 6.00% in fiscal 2032, 5.25% in fiscal 2033, then 5.00% in fiscal 2034 and after.  
 
The discount rate was changed to 4.50% from 4.38%. There was no change in the 
expected return on asset assumption.  
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Expected Return on Plan Assets 

The MCHCP Board of Trustees adopted an asset allocation model for the SRWBT 
that implemented a moderate investment approach to steadily increase the 
exposure of the SRWBT to higher asset classes over time. Exposure to equities will 
be through a combination of actively managed index funds and/or exchange traded 
funds that are highly rated and reviewed regularly. Allocations are back tested, 
and future assets are projected in all models.  
 
The table below presents the asset allocation for the plan at June 30, 2021:  
 

Target Expected
Asset Class Allocation Real Return

Large cap stocks 18% 8.5%
Mid cap stocks 7% 8.8%
Small cap stocks 9% 8.8%
International stocks 5% 8.9%
BarCap Aggregate bonds 59% 2.7%
Cash equivalents 2% 2.2%  

 
Rate of Return 

For the plan year ended June 30, 2021, the annual money weighted rate of return 
on OPEB plan investments, net of OPEB plan investment expense, was 14.40%. 
The money weighted rate of return expresses investment performance, net of 
investment expenses, adjusted for the changing amounts actually invested. 
 
Discount Rate 

A discount rate of 4.50% was used to measure the total OPEB liability. The 
projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed 
that contributions from plan members will be made at the current member 
contribution rates and the contributions from employers will be made 
at statutorily required rates, actuarially determined. This discount rate was 
determined as a blend of the plan sponsor’s best estimate of the expected return 
on plan assets and the twenty-year high quality municipal bond rate as of June 30, 
2021, the measurement date. For years where expected benefit payments can be 
covered by projected trust assets, expected returns are used. For years where 
payments are not expected to be covered by trust assets, the municipal Bond Buyer 
20-Bond General Obligation Index rate is used. 
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Sensitivity of the Commission’s proportionate share of the net OPEB 
liability to changes in the discount rate 

The following presents the Commission’s proportionate share of the net OPEB 
liability calculated using the discount rate of 4.50%, as well as what the 
Commission’s proportionate share of the net OPEB liability would be if it were 
calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower (3.50%) or 1-
percentage-point higher (5.50%) than the current rate: 
 

Current
1% Decrease  Discount Rate 1% Increase

(3.50%) (4.50%) (5.50%)
Commission's proportionate share of 
   net OPEB liability (in thousands) 4,432$        5,242$      6,265$          

 
Sensitivity of the Commission’s proportionate share of the net OPEB 
liability to Healthcare Cost Trend Rate 

The following presents the Commission’s proportionate share of the net OPEB 
liability calculated using assumed trend rates, as well as what the Commission’s 
proportionate share of net OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using a 
trend rate that is 1-percentage-point lower or 1-percentage-point higher: 
 

1% Decrease Current 1% Increase
in Trend Rates Trend Rates in Trend Rates

Commission's proportionate share of 
   net OPEB liability (in thousands) 4,419$        5,242$      6,282$          

 
OPEB Plan Fiduciary Net Position 
Detailed information about the OPEB plan’s fiduciary net position is available in 
the separately issued MCHCP comprehensive annual financial report. 
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11. Commitments, Contingencies and Concentrations 
 

 
Federal and Other Assistance Programs 

The Commission participates in various federal and other grant programs, primarily 
with HUD. In addition to an annual financial audit, the Commission is also subject 
to program audits, as deemed necessary by its federal and other grantor agencies 
that may result in disallowed costs to the Commission. The Commission’s 
management does not believe such audits would result in any disallowed costs that 
would be material to the Commission’s financial position at June 30, 2022. 
 
The Commission has identified certain questionable rental assistance payments, 
for which some have been reported to the appropriate agencies in accordance with 
regulatory requirements and applicable potential repayment has been recognized; 
others are pending investigation. The Commission’s management does not believe 
the ultimate resolution of such questioned costs would be material to the 
Commission’s financial position at June 30, 2022. 
 
The Commission is the administrator of the Project-Based Section 8 program in 
the State. This contract, which terminates January 31, 2023, resulted in 
$160,157,000 in housing assistance payment revenue and expense activity for the 
fiscal year ended June 30, 2022.  HUD may extend the current contract term and 
is planning to competitively bid this program administration.   
 
Arbitrage Rebate and Yield Compliance 

Federal income tax rules limit the investment and loan yields which the Commission 
may retain for its own use from investing the proceeds of certain tax-exempt bond 
issues. Excess yields, if any, payable to the U.S. Treasury are included in accounts 
payable. There was no liability payable as of June 30, 2022. The Commission has 
previously acquired certain participations in mortgage-backed securities that were 
financed with tax-exempt bond proceeds in which the interest participation 
percentage is lower than the principal participation percentage, which could result 
in the Commission having to originate future below-market loans or make a future 
yield reduction payment to the U.S. Treasury. 
 
Litigation 

From time to time, the Commission may be a defendant in legal actions related to 
its programs and operations.  While the final outcomes of these legal actions vary, 
management is of the opinion that the ultimate liability, if any, will not have a 
material effect on the Commission’s financial position. 
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Other 

The Commission is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage 
to and destruction of assets; errors and omissions; and natural disasters for which 
the Commission carries commercial insurance. In addition, the Commission carries 
commercial insurance for workers’ compensation. The Commission retains risk of 
loss; however, there have been no settlements which exceeded insurance coverage 
in the last three years. 
 
The Commission has committed to mortgage loans funded by the operating fund 
net position of $37,224,000 that have not been disbursed as of June 30, 2022. 
 
 

12. Subsequent Events 
 
During the current year the Commission authorized Single Family Mortgage 
Revenue Bonds to provide funding for the Commission’s First Place 
Homeownership Program. In accordance with this authorization, the Commission 
sold 2022 Series C bonds totaling $75,000,000 in August 2022. 
 
 

13. Future Accounting Pronouncements 
 
GASB Statement No. 96, Subscription-Based Information Technology 
Arrangements, is effective for the Commission’s fiscal year ending June 30, 2023. 
This statement establishes uniform accounting and financial reporting 
requirements for Subscription-Based Information Technology Arrangements 
(SBITA) where the government contracts for the right to use another party’s 
software. This statement requires SBITAs, previously classified as operating 
expenses, be recognized as  intangible right-to-use subscription assets with 
corresponding subscription liabilities. The Commission is in the process of 
evaluating the impact of adoption of this statement on the financial statements. 
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SCHEDULES OF SELECTED PENSION INFORMATION 
MISSOURI STATE EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT SYSTEM 

(In Thousands) 
 

Schedule of Commission’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability 
 

June 30, 2014 June 30, 2015 June 30, 2016 June 30, 2017 June 30, 2018 June 30, 2019 June 30, 2020 June 30, 2021

Commission's proportion of the net pension liability or asset 0.3044% 0.3030% 0.3148% 0.3141% 0.2993% 0.28676% 0.27947% 0.28894%
Commission’s proportionate share of the net pension liability 7,178$                    9,714$                  14,613$               16,355$                16,698$                  17,324$               17,740$               16,154$               
Commission’s covered payroll 5,481$                    5,856$                  6,097$                 6,182$                  5,818$                    5,571$                 5,585$                 5,825$                 
Commission’s proportionate share of the net pension liability
    as a percentage of its covered payroll 130.96% 165.88% 239.69% 264.55% 286.99% 310.97% 317.64% 277.32%
Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of
    the total pension liability 79.49% 77.62% 63.60% 60.41% 59.02% 56.72% 55.48% 63.00%

Plan Fiscal Year Ended

 
 

Schedule of Commission’s Contributions 
 

June 30, 2014 June 30, 2015 June 30, 2016 June 30, 2017 June 30, 2018 June 30, 2019 June 30, 2020 June 30, 2021 June 30, 2022

Required contribution 993$                       994$                     1,035$                 1,049$                  1,132$                    1,126$                 1,216$                 1,332$                 1,684$                  
Contributions in relation to the required contribution 993$                       994$                     1,035$                 1,049$                  1,132$                    1,126$                 1,216$                 1,332$                 1,684$                  
Contribution deficiency —                           —                          —                        —                          —                           —                         —                         —                         —                         
Commission’s covered payroll 5,481$                    5,856$                  6,097$                 6,182$                  5,818$                    5,571$                 5,585$                 5,825$                 7,164$                  

Contributions as a percentage of covered payroll 18.13% 16.97% 16.97% 16.97% 19.45% 20.21% 21.77% 22.88% 23.51%

Commission Fiscal Year Ended

 
 

Notes:  
 
Information provided is based on a measurement date and actuarial valuation as of the end of the preceding fiscal year. 
 
Above schedules are ultimately required to show information for ten years.  Only the data for years currently available is displayed. 
 
Changes of Benefit Terms or Assumptions 

Change in assumptions.  Subsequent changes in the UAAL due to actuarial gains/losses or assumption changes are amortized as a level percentage of 
payroll, over closed 25-year periods.  The merit component of the salary increase assumption was adjusted to partially reflect observed experience.  Mortality 
assumptions are now based on generational tables.
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SCHEDULES OF SELECTED OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT 
BENEFIT INFORMATION 

MISSOURI CONSOLIDATED HEALTH CARE PLAN 
(In Thousands) 

 
Schedule of Commission’s Proportionate Share of the Net OPEB Liability

June 30, 2017 June 30, 2018 June 30, 2019 June 30, 2020 June 30, 2021

Commission's proportion of the net OPEB liability 0.3424% 0.3245% 0.3082% 0.3061% 0.3073%
Commission’s proportionate share of the net OPEB liability 6,042$               5,686$               5,451$               5,452$               5,242$               
Commission’s covered payroll 5,542$               5,245$               5,026$               5,187$               5,381$               
Commission’s proportionate share of the net OPEB liability
    as a percentage of its covered payroll 109.02% 108.41% 108.46% 105.11% 97.42%
Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of
    the total OPEB liability 6.64% 6.90% 7.31% 8.24% 10.14%

Schedule of Commission’s Contributions

June 30, 2017 June 30, 2018 June 30, 2019 June 30, 2020 June 30, 2021 June 30, 2022

Required contribution 230$                  224$                  253$                  221$                  229$                  290$                 
Contributions in relation to the required contribution 230$                  224$                  253$                  221$                  229$                  290$                 
Contribution deficiency —                      —                      —                      —                      —                      —                     
Commission’s covered payroll 5,542$               5,245$               5,026$               5,187$               5,381$               6,719$              
Contributions as a percentage of covered payroll 4.14% 4.27% 5.03% 4.26% 4.26% 4.31%

Notes: 
Information provided is based on a measurement date and actuarial valuation as of the end of the preceding fiscal year.
Above schedules are ultimately required to show information for ten years. Only the data for years currently available is displayed

Changes of benefit terms or assumptions
  Changes in assumptions and methods include the following:

• The discount rate was changed from 4.38% to 4.50%.
• The mortality base tables were changed from RP-2016 to Pri-2012; the mortality projection scales were changed from MP-2016 to MP-2021.
• Per capita claims costs, administrative expenses and retiree contributions were updated based on analysis of 2022 rates.
• Trend rates were updated based on anticipated future experience.

Plan Fiscal Year Ended

Commission Fiscal Year Ended
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COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 
Page 1 of 2 

June 30, 2022 
(In Thousands) 

 
 
 
 

Operating Multifamily Single Family Total
Assets

Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 550$           —$            —$                550$           
Investments 10,730            —                     —                      10,730            
Mortgage investments 11,278            —                     —                      11,278            
Accrued interest receivable 2,017              —                     —                      2,017              
Accounts receivable - other 1,911              —                     —                      1,911              
Prepaid expenses 436                 —                     —                      436                 

Total Current Assets 26,922            —                     —                      26,922            

Noncurrent Assets
Restricted assets

Cash and cash equivalents 390,486           5,721                130,553              526,760          
Investments 96,050            4,166                2,920                 103,136          
Mortgage investments 255,658           35,467              1,054,242           1,345,367        
Accrued interest receivable 528                 206                   3,390                 4,124              
Accounts receivable - other 22,265            —                     —                      22,265            

Total restricted assets            764,987               45,560            1,191,105         2,001,652 

Investments 184,105           —                     —                      184,105          
Mortgage investments, net of current portion

and allowances for loan losses of $40,248 91,967            —                     —                      91,967            
Capital assets, less accumulated depreciation

of $5,271 2,007              —                     —                      2,007              
Lease assets, less accumulated amortization

of $1,482 2,564              —                     —                      2,564              

Total Noncurrent Assets         1,045,630               45,560            1,191,105         2,282,295 

Total Assets 1,072,552        45,560              1,191,105           2,309,217        

Deferred Outflows of Resources
Refunding of debt —                   6                      752                    758                 
Pension 3,441              —                     —                      3,441              
Other Postemployment Benefits (OPEB) 599                 —                     —                      599                 

Total Deferred Outflows of Resources 4,040              6                      752                    4,798              

Bond-Financed Programs
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COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET POSITION (Continued)  
Page 2 of 2 

June 30, 2022 
(In Thousands) 

 
 
 
 

Operating Multifamily Single Family Total
Liabilities

Current Liabilities
Lease liabilities 673$               —$            —$             673$           
Accounts payable 7,851              —                     —                      7,851              
Unearned revenue 1,373              —                     —                      1,373              

Total Current Liabilities 9,897              —                     —                      9,897              

Current Liabilities - Payable from Restricted Assets
Bonds and notes payable —                   1,502                29,075               30,577            
Accrued interest payable —                   403                   4,803                 5,206              
Federal housing subsidy deposits 392,934           —                     —                      392,934          
Accounts payable 1,465              —                     —                      1,465              

Total Current Liabilities - Payable from
Restricted Assets 394,399           1,905                33,878               430,182          

Noncurrent Liabilities 
Lease liabilities 1,917              —                     —                      1,917              
Pension 16,154            —                     —                      16,154            
Other Postemployment Benefits (OPEB) 5,242              —                     —                      5,242              
Unearned revenue 7,872              —                     —                      7,872              

Payable from restricted assets
Bonds and notes payable —                   32,344              1,075,050           1,107,394        

Total Noncurrent Liabilities 31,185            32,344              1,075,050           1,138,579        

Total Liabilities 435,481           34,249              1,108,928           1,578,658        

Deferred Inflows of Resources
Refunding of debt —                   60                     978                    1,038              
Pension 3,168              —                     —                      3,168              
Other Postemployment Benefits (OPEB) 1,133              —                     —                      1,133              

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 4,301              60                     978                    5,339              

Net Position
Net investment in capital assets 1,981              —                     —                      1,981              
Restricted 358,642           11,257              81,951               451,850          
Unrestricted, including designated balances 276,187           —                     —                      276,187          

Total Net Position 636,810$         11,257$     81,951$      730,018$     

Bond-Financed Programs
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COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 
MULTIFAMILY BOND - FINANCED PROGRAMS 

June 30, 2022 
(In Thousands) 

 
 
 
 

Multifamily Multifamily

(2000 Indenture) (2014 Indenture) Total
Assets

Noncurrent Assets
Restricted assets

Cash and cash equivalents 3,965$        1,756$        5,721$            
Investments 1,539                         2,627                         4,166                 
Mortgage investments 19,139                       16,328                       35,467               
Accrued interest receivable 101                           105                           206                    

Total Noncurrent Assets 24,744                       20,816                       45,560               

Total Assets 24,744                       20,816                       45,560               

Deferred Outflows of Resources
Refunding of debt —                             6                               6                       

Liabilities
Current Liabilities - Payable from Restricted Assets

Bonds and notes payable 806                           696                           1,502                 
Accrued interest payable 365                           38                             403                    

Total Current Liabilities - Payable from
Restricted Assets 1,171                         734                           1,905                 

Noncurrent Liabilities 
Bonds and notes payable 16,670                       15,674                       32,344               

Total Noncurrent Liabilities 16,670                       15,674                       32,344               

Total Liabilities 17,841                       16,408                       34,249               

Deferred Inflows of Resources
Refunding of debt —                             60                             60                      

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources —                             60                             60                      

Net Position
Restricted 6,903                         4,354                         11,257               

Total Net Position 6,903$        4,354$        11,257$          
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COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 
SINGLE FAMILY BOND - FINANCED PROGRAMS 

June 30, 2022  
(In Thousands) 

 
 
 
 

Special First Place
Homeownership Homeownership
(2009 Indenture) (2015 Indenture) Total

Assets
Noncurrent Assets

Restricted assets
Cash and cash equivalents 2,071$             128,482$      130,553$              
Investments —                               2,920                          2,920                       
Mortgage investments 45,766                        1,008,476                    1,054,242                 
Accrued interest receivable 162                             3,228                          3,390                       

Total Noncurrent Assets 47,999                        1,143,106                    1,191,105                 

Total Assets                         47,999                     1,143,106                  1,191,105 

Deferred Outflows of Resources
Refunding of debt                                —                              752 752                          

Total Deferred Outflows of Resources —                               752                             752                          

Liabilities
Current Liabilities - Payable from Restricted Assets

Bonds and notes payable 1,864                          27,211                        29,075                     
Accrued interest payable 138                             4,665                          4,803                       

Total Current Liabilities - Payable from
Restricted Assets 2,002                          31,876                        33,878                     

Noncurrent Liabilities 
Payable from restricted assets

Bonds and notes payable 31,033                        1,044,017                    1,075,050                 
Total Noncurrent Liabilities 31,033                        1,044,017                    1,075,050                 

Total Liabilities 33,035                        1,075,893                    1,108,928                 

Deferred Inflows of Resources
Refunding of debt 485                             493                             978                          

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 485                             493                             978                          

Net Position
Restricted 14,479                        67,472                        81,951                     

Total Net Position 14,479$           67,472$        81,951$                
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COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND  
CHANGES IN NET POSITION 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2022 
(In Thousands) 

 
 
 
 

Operating Multifamily Single Family Total

Operating Revenues

Interest and investment income

Income - mortgage investments 11,162$        2,143$   38,116$   51,421$       

Income - investments 3,782                214                   243                    4,239              

Net decrease in fair value (31,249)             (812)                  (108,225)             (140,286)          

Total interest and investment income (16,305)             1,545                (69,866)               (84,626)           

Income - MBS sales 549                  —                     —                      549                 

Administration fees 7,738                —                     —                      7,738              

Other income 8,157                —                     2,275                  10,432            

Federal program income 512,133            —                     —                      512,133           

Total Operating Revenues 512,272            1,545                (67,591)               446,226           

Operating Expenses

Interest expense on bonds 128                  1,465                24,177                25,770            

Bond debt expense and other fees 43                    36                     2,864                  2,943              

Compensation 11,825              —                     —                      11,825            

General and administrative expenses 5,618                —                     —                      5,618              

Rent and other subsidy payments 7,052                —                     —                      7,052              

Missouri Housing Trust Fund grants 3,157                —                     —                      3,157              

Federal program expenses 501,918            —                     —                      501,918           

Total Operating Expenses 529,741            1,501                27,041                558,283           

Income before transfers from Custodial Funds (17,469)             44                     (94,632)               (112,057)          

Transfer from Custodial Funds 606                  —                     —                      606                 

Change in Net Position (16,863)             44                     (94,632)               (111,451)          

Net Position - Beginning of Year, as Restated 653,144            12,275               176,050              841,469           

Interfund Transfers 529                  (1,062)               533                    —                   

Net Position - End of Year 636,810$       11,257$         81,951$          730,018$     

Bond-Financed Programs
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COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND  
CHANGES IN NET POSITION 

MULTIFAMILY BOND - FINANCED PROGRAMS 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2022 

(In Thousands) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Multifamily Multifamily

(2000 Indenture) (2014 Indenture) Total

Operating Revenues

Interest and investment income

Income - mortgage investments 1,051$     1,092$       2,143$            

Income - investments 79                          135                       214                 

Net decrease in fair value (277)                       (535)                      (812)                

Total interest and investment income 853                        692                       1,545              

Total Operating Revenues 853                        692                       1,545              

Operating Expenses

Interest expense on bonds 752                        713                       1,465              

Bond debt expense and other fees 17                          19                         36                   

Total Operating Expenses 769                        732                       1,501              

Change in Net Position 84                          (40)                        44                   

Net Position - Beginning of Year 6,895                      5,380                    12,275            

Interfund Transfers (76)                         (986)                      (1,062)             

Net Position - End of Year 6,903$         4,354$       11,257$           
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COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND  
CHANGES IN NET POSITION 

SINGLE FAMILY BOND - FINANCED PROGRAMS 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2022 

(In Thousands)  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Special First Place

Homeownership Homeownership

(2009 Indenture) (2015 Indenture) Total

Operating Revenues

Interest and investment income

Income - mortgage investments 2,146$      35,970$       38,116$                     

Income - investments 4                             239                            243                           

Net decrease in fair value (3,927)                     (104,298)                     (108,225)                    

Total interest and investment income (1,777)                     (68,089)                       (69,866)                     

Other income 282                         1,993                         2,275                        

Total Operating Revenues (1,495)                     (66,096)                       (67,591)                     

Operating Expenses

Interest expense on bonds 1,194                      22,983                        24,177                      

Bond debt expense and other fees 10                           2,854                         2,864                        

Total Operating Expenses 1,204                      25,837                        27,041                      

Change in Net Position (2,699)                     (91,933)                       (94,632)                     

Net Position - Beginning of Year 18,780                     157,270                      176,050                     

Interfund Transfers (1,602)                     2,135                         533                           

Net Position - End of Year 14,479$    67,472$       81,951$                     
 

 



 

 

Single Audit Information    
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Independent Auditors’ Report On Internal  
Control Over Financial Reporting And On  

Compliance And Other Matters Based On An  
Audit Of Financial Statements Performed In  

Accordance With Government Auditing Standards 
 
 
The Commissioners  
Missouri Housing Development Commission 
Kansas City, Missouri 
 
 
We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government 
Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial 
statements of the business-type activities and the aggregate remaining fund information of the 
Missouri Housing Development Commission as of and for the year ended June 30, 2022, and the 
related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Missouri Housing 
Development Commission’s basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated 
September 15, 2022. 
 
Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 
 
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Missouri 
Housing Development Commission’s internal control over financial reporting (internal control) 
as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the 
purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Missouri Housing Development Commission’s 
internal control.  Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
Commission’s internal control. 
 
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to 
prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis.  A material weakness is a 
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable 
possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, 
or detected and corrected on a timely basis.  A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet 
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.  
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Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph 
of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be 
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies.  Given these limitations, during our audit we did 
not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses.  
However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 
 
Compliance And Other Matters 
 
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Missouri Housing Development 
Commission’s financial statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of 
its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements, 
noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the financial statements.  
However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our 
audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.  The results of our tests disclosed no 
instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government 
Auditing Standards. 
 
Purpose Of This Report 
 
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and 
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of 
the Missouri Housing Development Commission’s internal control or on compliance.  This report 
is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in 
considering the entity’s internal control and compliance.  Accordingly, this communication is not 
suitable for any other purpose. 
 

 
 
September 15, 2022 
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Independent Auditors’ Report On Compliance For 
Each Major Federal Program And Report On Internal 

Control Over Compliance Required By The Uniform Guidance 
 
 
The Commissioners  
Missouri Housing Development Commission 
Kansas City, Missouri 
 
 
Report On Compliance For Each Major Federal Program 
 
Qualified and Unmodified Opinions 

We have audited the Missouri Housing Development Commission’s compliance with the types of 
compliance requirements described in the OMB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct 
and material effect on each of the Missouri Housing Development Commission’s major federal 
programs for the year ended June 30, 2022. The Missouri Housing Development Commission’s 
major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditors’ results section of the 
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.   
 
Qualified Opinion on ALN #14.231  

In our opinion, except for the noncompliance described in the Basis for Qualified and Unmodified 
Opinions section of our report, Missouri Housing Development Commission complied, in all 
material respects, with the compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct 
and material effect on ALN #14.231 for the year ended June 30, 2022.  
 
Unmodified Opinion on Each of the Other Major Federal Programs  

In our opinion, Missouri Housing Development Commission complied, in all material respects, 
with the compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect 
on each of its other major federal programs identified in the summary of auditor’s results section 
of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs for the year ended June 30, 2022.  
 
Basis for Qualified and Unmodified Opinions  

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted 
in the United States of America (GAAS); the standards applicable to financial audits contained 
in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and 
the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform 
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards 
(Uniform Guidance). Our responsibilities under those standards and the Uniform Guidance are 
further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section of our 
report.  
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We are required to be independent of Missouri Housing Development Commission and to meet 
our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with relevant ethical requirements relating to 
our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our qualified and unmodified opinions on compliance for each major federal 
program. Our audit does not provide a legal determination of Missouri Housing Development 
Commission’s compliance with the compliance requirements referred to above. 
 
Matter(s) Giving Rise to Qualified Opinion on ALN #14.231 

As described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs, Missouri Housing 
Development Commission did not comply with requirements regarding ALN #14.231 as described 
in Finding No. 2022-001 for Allowable Costs and Activities. Compliance with such requirements 
is necessary, in our opinion, for Missouri Housing Development Commission to comply with the 
requirements applicable to that program. 
 
Responsibilities of Management for Compliance  

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements referred to above and for the 
design, implementation, and maintenance of effective internal control over compliance with the 
requirements of laws, statutes, regulations, rules and provisions of contracts or grant agreements 
applicable to Missouri Housing Development Commission’s federal programs.  
 
Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance  

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether material noncompliance with 
the compliance requirements referred to above occurred, whether due to fraud or error, and 
express an opinion on Missouri Housing Development Commission’s compliance based on our 
audit. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and 
therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS, Government 
Auditing Standards, and the Uniform Guidance will always detect material noncompliance when 
it exists. The risk of not detecting material noncompliance resulting from fraud is higher than for 
that resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Noncompliance with the compliance 
requirements referred to above is considered material, if there is a substantial likelihood that, 
individually or in the aggregate, it would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user of 
the report on compliance about Missouri Housing Development Commission’s compliance with 
the requirements of each major federal program as a whole. 
 
In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS, Government Auditing Standards, and the 
Uniform Guidance, we:  

• Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the 
audit.  

• Identify and assess the risks of material noncompliance, whether due to fraud or error, 
and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures 
include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding Missouri Housing Development 
Commission’s compliance with the compliance requirements referred to above and 
performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.  
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• Obtain an understanding of Missouri Housing Development Commission’s internal control 
over compliance relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances and to test and report on internal control over 
compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Missouri Housing Development 
Commission’s internal control over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.  

 
We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other 
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and any significant deficiencies and material 
weaknesses in internal control over compliance that we identified during the audit. 
 
Other Matters 
 
The results of our auditing procedures disclosed instances of noncompliance, which are required 
to be reported in accordance with the Uniform Guidance and which are described in the 
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as items 2022-002 and 2022-003.  Our 
opinion on each major federal program is not modified with respect to these matters. 
 
Government Auditing Standards requires the auditor to perform limited procedures on Missouri 
Housing Development Commission’s response to the noncompliance findings identified in our 
compliance audit described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. 
Missouri Housing Development Commission’s responses were not subjected to the other auditing 
procedures applied in the audit of compliance and, accordingly, we express no opinion on those 
responses. 
 
Report On Internal Control Over Compliance 
 
Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in 
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section above and was not designed to 
identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or 
significant deficiencies in internal over compliance and therefore, material weaknesses or 
significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified.  However, as discussed below, we did 
identify certain deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material 
weaknesses and significant deficiencies. 
 
A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control 
over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing 
their assigned functions, to prevent or detect and correct noncompliance with a type of compliance 
requirement of a federal program on a timely basis.  A material weakness in internal control over 
compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, 
such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance 
requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely 
basis.  We consider the deficiencies in internal control over compliance described in the 
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as items 2022-001 and 2022-002 to be 
material weaknesses. 
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A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of 
deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal 
program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet 
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. We consider the 
deficiency in internal control over compliance described in the accompanying schedule of findings 
and questioned costs as item 2022-003 to be a significant deficiency. 
 
Our audit was not designed for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of 
internal control over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.  
 
 
Government Auditing Standards requires the auditor to perform limited procedures on Missouri 
Housing Development Commission’s responses to the internal control over compliance findings 
identified in our compliance audit described in the accompanying schedule of findings and 
questioned costs. Missouri Housing Development Commission’s responses were not subjected to 
the other auditing procedures applied in the audit of compliance and, accordingly, we express no 
opinion on the responses. 
 
The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of 
our testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the 
requirements of the Uniform Guidance.  Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other 
purpose. 
 

 
 
September 15, 2022 
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SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS 
For The Year Ended June 30, 2022 

(In Thousands) 
 
 
 
 
 

Assistance Passthrough Passed

Listing Entity Identifying Federal Through to
Federal Grantor/Pass-Through Grantor/Program Title Number Number Expenditures Subrecipients

U.S. Department of Agriculture
Section 538 Rural Rental Housing Guaranteed Loans 10.438 134$            —$               

U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development
Section 221(d)(3) and (4) Multifamily - Market Rate Housing

Mortgage Insurance 14.135 1,829                     —                           

Section 8 Project-Based Cluster:
Section 8 New Construction and Substantial Rehabilitation 14.182 160,157                —                           

Section 542(c) Risk Sharing Program 14.188 31,851                   —                           

HOME Investment Partnerships Program 14.239 16,884                   1,604                     
HOME Investment Partnerships Program - Loans 14.239 268,899                —                           

HOME Investment Partnerships American Rescue Plan Program 14.218 16                           —                           

Housing Trust Fund 14.275 7,347                     —                           
Housing Trust Fund - Loans 14.275 3,412                     —                           

U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development/
Missouri Department of Social Services

Emergency Solutions Grant Program 14.231 Grant No. ER16421ESG1 1,487                     1,431                     

Emergency Solutions Grant Program 14.231 Grant No. ER16422ESG1 1,118                     1,108                     
Emergency Solutions Grant Program - COVID 19 14.231 Grant No. ER164ESGCV1 8,968                     8,968                     

11,573                   11,507                   

Total U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development 501,968                13,111                   

U.S. Department of the Treasury/
Missouri Department of Economic Development

Emergency Rental Assistance Program ERA1 - COVID 19 21.023 311,671                22,686                   
Homeowner Assistance Fund - COVID 19 21.026 11,049                   125                        

Total U.S. Department of the Treasury 322,720                22,811                   

Total Expenditures of Federal Awards 824,822$    35,922$      
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NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS 
June 30, 2022 

 
 
1. Organization 

 
The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards presents the activity 
of all federal award programs of Missouri Housing Development Commission (the 
Commission) for the year ended June 30, 2022.  All federal awards received directly 
from federal agencies, as well as federal awards passed through other 
governmental agencies, are included on the schedule. 

 
 
2. Basis Of Presentation 

 
The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards includes the federal 
grant activity of the Commission and is presented on the accrual basis of 
accounting.  The information in this schedule is presented in accordance with the 
requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform 
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal 
Awards (Uniform Guidance).  Therefore, some amounts presented in this schedule 
may differ from amounts presented in, or used in the preparation of, the basic 
financial statements. 
 
 

3. Indirect Cost Rate 
 

The Commission has elected not to use the 10 percent de minimis indirect cost rate 
allowed under the Uniform Guidance. 
 
 

4. Additional Audits 
 
Grantor agencies reserve the right to conduct additional audits of the 
Commission’s grant programs for economy and efficiency and program results 
which may result in disallowed costs to the Commission.  However, management 
does not believe such audits would result in any disallowed costs that would be 
material to the Commission’s financial position at June 30, 2022. 
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5. Loan Programs 
 
The Commission participates in the Section 538 Rural Rental Housing Guaranteed 
Loans program (7 C.F.R. pt.3565 (2008)) (ALN No. 10.438), under which the Rural 
Housing Service (RHS), Department of Agriculture (USDA) provides credit 
enhancements to encourage lending for affordable rental properties that meet 
program standards.  The USDA has assumed 90% of the risk in one loan closed 
and funded by the Commission in previous years. The Commission services this 
loan which had an outstanding balance at June 30, 2022 of $129,000.  USDA’s 
assumed risk approximated $116,000 at June 30, 2022.  
 
Certain mortgage loans of the Commission are insured by the U.S. Department of 
Housing and Urban Development (HUD) under Section 221(d)(3) and (4) 
Multifamily-Market Rate Housing program (12 U.S.C. 17151(d)(3),(4) (2006)) 
(ALN No. 14.135) which insures lenders against loss on mortgage defaults for 
market rate rental projects. The Commission services these loans and the 
outstanding balance at June 30, 2022 was $1,676,000.   
 
The Commission participates in the Section 542(c) Risk Sharing Program 
(24 C.F.R. pt.226 (2008)) (ALN No. 14.188), under which HUD provides credit 
enhancements for multifamily housing project loans.  HUD and the Commission 
share in the risk of loss on the mortgages.  The Commission services these loans 
and the outstanding balance at June 30, 2022 was $49,061,000.  HUD has assumed 
50% of the risk in these loans.  HUD’s assumed risk approximated $24,530,000 at 
June 30, 2022.  
 
The Commission is the Administrator of the HOME Investment Partnerships 
Program (HOME) (CDFA No. 14.239) for the State of Missouri. The HOME 
program provides financing for several eligible activities that increase the supply 
of affordable housing for low and very low income persons. The Commission uses 
a portion of its HOME allocation to finance multifamily mortgages at very low 
interest rates, which results in rents that are affordable for low income families. 
HOME mortgages outstanding total $266,019,000 at June 30, 2022. The 
Commission services these loans, which have continuing compliance requirements 
during the period of affordability, as defined by the HOME program requirements, 
which vary depending on the number of HOME units at each property. 
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The Commission is the Administrator of the Housing Trust Fund (CDFA No. 
14.275) for the State of Missouri. The Housing Trust Fund provides financing for 
eligible activities that increase the supply of affordable housing for low and very 
low income persons. The Commission uses the Housing Trust Fund allocation to 
finance multifamily mortgages at very low interest rates, which results in rents 
that are affordable for low income families. Housing Trust Fund mortgages 
outstanding total $10,591,000 at June 30, 2022. The Commission services these 
loans, which have continuing compliance requirements during the period of 
affordability, as defined by the Housing Trust Fund requirements, which vary 
depending on the number of Housing Trust Fund units at each property. 
 
 

6. Undisbursed Funds 
 
Analysis of undisbursed funds at June 30, 2022, was as follows (in thousands): 
 

14.182        14.239        21.023          21.026          

Undisbursed cash 294$   29,208$ 244,537$  127,299$   
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SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 
For The Year Ended June 30, 2022 

 

 Section I - Summary of Auditors’ Results  

  
Financial Statements   
Type of auditors’ report issued on whether the 
financial statements were prepared in 
accordance with GAAP: Unmodified  

Internal control over financial reporting:      

 Material weakness(es) identified?  yes x no  
 Significant deficiency(ies) identified?  yes x  None reported 

Noncompliance material to financial statements noted?  yes x no  

Federal Awards      

Internal control over major programs:      

 Material weakness(es) identified? x yes  no  
 Significant deficiency(ies) identified? x yes   None reported 

Type of auditors’ report issued on compliance  
for major programs: Unmodified for all major 

federal programs, except for 
ALN #14.231, which was 
Qualified for Allowable Costs 
and Activities 

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported in 
accordance with 2 CFR 200.516(a)? x yes    no  

Identification of major programs:      
 

Assistance
Listing

Cluster/Program Number

Emergency Solutions Grant Program - COVID 19 14.231
Emergency Rental Assistance Program - COVID 19 21.023
Homeowner Assistance Fund - COVID 19 21.026  

 
Dollar threshold used to distinguish between type A  
and type B programs:                                                                          $3,000,000 
Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee?  yes x no  
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SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (Continued) 
For The Year Ended June 30, 2022 

 
 
 Section II - Financial Statement Findings  

 
None
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SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (Continued) 
For The Year Ended June 30, 2022 

 
 Section III - Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs  

 
Finding 2022-001 – Allowable Costs and Activities – Compliance and Control Finding 
 
Federal Award. No. 14.231 Emergency Solutions Grant Program – COVID 19  
 
Federal Agency: U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development 
 
Pass-Through Entity: Missouri Department of Social Services 
 
Criteria Or Specific Requirement: 2 CFR sections 200.400 through 200.401 provide the general provisions 
for cost principles. Section 200.400(b) states that the non-Federal entity assumes responsibility of administering 
Federal funds in a manner consistent with underlying agreements, program objectives and the terms and 
conditions of the Federal award.  
 
Condition:  In our nonstatistical sample of 40 transactions, we noted no exceptions as a result of our testing.  
However, during the current fiscal year, management of the Commission identified certain questionable rental 
assistance payments. Certain payments have been reported to the appropriate agencies in accordance with 
regulatory requirements and other payments are pending further investigation.  
 
Cause:  The significant amount of Federal dollars awarded, the short period of time required to make awards 
available and the presence of new requirements for the program were burdensome for management to disburse 
in compliance with Federal guidelines. Compared to the Commission’s other Federal programs, the program 
involves a very large number of applications and a high volume of transactions resulting in exposure to error 
and irregularity. 
 
Effect: Instances of known and suspected noncompliance were identified by the Commission. 
 
Questioned Costs: $2,087,937 of costs are actively being investigated by the Commission.  Of this amount, the 
Commission has identified $1,791,963 of known questioned costs and $295,974 of potential questioned costs that 
are still being investigated. 
 
Context:  Approximately 1,300 vendors are set up in the Commission’s system for application of emergency 
rental assistance. Of the vendors with applications approved for funding, 133 are considered to be known 
noncompliance and 15 are being investigated for potential noncompliance.  After the identification of the first 
instance of noncompliance, the Commission adjusted and enhanced its procedures for evaluating current and 
existing applications. As the Commission reviews future applications following their updated policies and 
procedures, additional vendors could be flagged to investigate prior payments for potential ineligible costs.  
 
Identification As A Repeat Finding:  Repeat of Finding No. 2021-001. 
 
Recommendation:  We recommend that management continue to apply resources devoted to mitigating and 
preventing further exposure to noncompliance. Additionally, we recommend the Commission continue to provide 
additional training to employees as well as third parties responsible for reviewing and approving applications. 
Internal controls over allowable costs and activities should ensure procedural improvements are implemented 
properly. 
 
Views Of Responsible Officials: The Commission administered direct assistance according to the program 
rules and regulations. The Commission collected the required information and documentation to review and 
approve applications. Applicants submitted certified applications meeting the requirements of the program. 
However, the Commission staff discovered through its noncompliance review and identification processes that  
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SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (Continued) 
For The Year Ended June 30, 2022 

 
 
some program applicants provided false information and fraudulent documentation that continues to be 
investigated and reported to the proper authorities. Internal controls have been enhanced to mitigate and 
identify instances of potential noncompliance. The funding for the direct rental assistance under this program 
was concluded and the final disbursements made in early May 2021. The Commission hired an Internal 
Compliance Manager in May 2021 and has engaged a third party law firm and a consulting group to provide 
consultative assistance to improve processes and to assist in investigating applications deemed to be 
questionable. A formal fraud, waste and abuse policy was adopted in July 2021. During fiscal year 2022, the 
Commission undertook extensive efforts to detect instances of ineligible applicants and documentation 
irregularities, which resulted in identification of these instances of applicant noncompliance.  
 
Anticipated Completion Date: The Commission implemented additional compliance review procedures 
during fiscal year 2021 and expects to conclude its investigation of identified cases during calendar year 2023.  
 
Contact Person: Steve Whitson, Director of Community Programs 
 
 
Finding 2022-002 – Allowable Costs and Activities, Eligibility – Compliance and Control Finding 
 
Federal Award. No. 21.023 Emergency Rental Assistance Program – COVID 19  
 
Federal Agency: U.S. Department of Treasury 
 
Pass-Through Entity: Missouri Department of Economic Development 
 
Criteria Or Specific Requirement: 2 CFR sections 200.400 through 200.401 provide the general provisions 
for cost principles. Section 200.400(b) states that the non-Federal entity assumes responsibility of administering 
Federal funds in a manner consistent with underlying agreements, program objectives and the terms and 
conditions of the Federal award.  
 
Condition:  In our nonstatistical sample of 40 transactions, we noted no exceptions as a result of our testing. 
However, during the current fiscal year, management of the Commission identified certain questionable rental 
assistance payments. Certain payments have been reported to the appropriate agencies in accordance with 
regulatory requirements and other payments are pending further investigation.  
 
Cause:  The significant amount of Federal dollars awarded, the short period of time required to make awards 
available and the presence of new requirements under a new program were burdensome for management to 
disburse in compliance with Federal guidelines. Compared to the Commission’s other Federal programs, the 
program involves a very large number of applications and a high volume of transactions resulting in exposure to 
error and irregularity. 
 
Effect: Instances of known and suspected noncompliance were identified by the Commission. 
 
Questioned Costs: $6,743,299 of costs are actively being investigated by the Commission.  Of this amount, the 
Commission has identified $3,861,548 of known questioned costs and $2,881,751 of potential questioned costs 
that are still being investigated. 
 
Context:  Approximately 20,000 vendors are set up in the Commission’s system for application of emergency 
rental assistance. Of the vendors with applications approved for funding, 172 are considered to be known 
noncompliance and 76 are being investigated for potential noncompliance.  After the identification of the first 
instance of noncompliance, the Commission adjusted and enhanced its procedures for evaluating current and 
existing applications. As the Commission reviews future applications following their updated policies and 
procedures, additional vendors could be flagged to investigate prior payments for potential ineligible costs.  
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Identification As A Repeat Finding:  Repeat of Finding No. 2021-002. 
 
Recommendation:  We recommend that management continue to apply resources devoted to mitigating and 
preventing further exposure to noncompliance. Additionally, we recommend the Commission continue to provide 
additional training to employees as well as third parties responsible for reviewing and approving applications. 
Internal controls over allowable costs and activities should ensure procedural improvements are implemented 
properly. 
 
Views Of Responsible Officials: The Commission administered direct assistance according to the program 
rules and regulations. The Commission collected the required information and documentation to review and 
approve applications. Applicants submitted certified applications meeting the requirements of the program. 
However, the Commission staff discovered through its noncompliance review and identification processes that 
some program applicants provided false information and fraudulent documentation that continues to be 
investigated and reported to the proper authorities. Internal controls have been enhanced to mitigate and help 
prevent further exposure to noncompliance. This includes the adoption of a formal fraud, waste, and abuse policy 
in July 2021 as well as providing additional training to employees and third parties that are responsible for 
reviewing and approving applications in order to better detect invalid applicants to prevent funding these 
applicants. In May 2021, the Commission hired an Internal Compliance Manager and has engaged a third party 
law firm and a consulting group to provide consultative assistance to improve processes and to assist in 
investigating applications deemed to be questionable. Further, internal staffing capacity continues to be 
expanded with the creation of the Community Programs Processes Department in fall 2021 and the Data and 
Analytics Department in early 2022. Additional investigative techniques such as “mass denial metrics” and 
tiered level reviews have been implemented into weekly application processing. Processes will continue to be 
implemented in response to changes in behavior by ineligible actors and ineligible application submission 
attempts. Commission staff has set regular internal coordination meetings to improve communication and aid 
in the identification of new indicators. Internal compliance staff actively participates in national groups 
administering similar programs, and explores and adopts new preventative measures demonstrated to be 
effective in other states.  
 
Anticipated Completion Date: The Commission implemented additional compliance review procedures 
during fiscal year 2021 and expects to conclude its investigation of identified cases during calendar year 2023.  
 
Contact Person: Steve Whitson, Director of Community Programs 
 
Finding 2022-003 – Reporting – Compliance and Control Finding 
 
Federal Award. No. 21.023 Emergency Rental Assistance Program – COVID 19  
 
Federal Agency: U.S. Department of Treasury 
 
Pass-Through Entity: Missouri Department of Economic Development 
 
Criteria Or Specific Requirement: All Emergency Rental Assistance (ERA) grantees must submit monthly 
and quarterly reports. Monthly reports capture details specific to that month while quarterly reports contain 
several cumulative fields covering all activity from the date of the grant award through the quarter close. These 
reports provide financial and performance data regarding grantee administration of their ERA projects and 
capture program design in addition to program status data elements. Quarterly reports are intended to capture 
standard financial and performance data, as well as detailed information on qualifying direct and indirect 
expenditures pursuant to the government-wide Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) 
reporting requirements and in accordance with Section 15011 of the Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic 
Security Act, as amended and interpreted in the U.S. Department of Treasury’s reporting and compliance 
guidance on Treasury.gov. 
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Condition:  In our nonstatistical sample, we noted four monthly reports and one quarterly report of eight tested 
in which we were unable to agree identified “Key Line Items” to the general ledger. For the monthly reports, the 
key line item noted was the “Total amount of ERA funds expended by the ERA grantee to or for participating 
households on behalf of eligible households” line. For the quarterly report, the key line items were “the 
cumulative amount obligated by the grantee” and “the cumulative amount expended by the grantee”. Records 
supporting obligated amounts were not retained from the application database.  The Commission’s general ledger 
accounts, which can include voided transactions, need to be reconciled to the application program details file. 
The process of reconciling and retaining the information used to create these reports was not in place throughout 
the entirety of the current year. 
 
Cause:  Due to timing and staffing constraints, these reports were created from live files which were not 
reconciled with the general ledger prior to submission of the reports. Additionally, the live files in which the 
report were created were not retained by the Commission as supporting documentation for the amounts included 
in the reports submitted to the U.S. Treasury. 
 
Effect: The numbers reported to U.S. Treasury are not substantiated by supporting documentation such as a 
reconciliation, the general ledger or the live files that include program data. 
 
Questioned Costs: None 
 
Context:  In our nonstatistical sample, we noted four monthly reports and one quarterly report of eight tested 
in which we were unable to agree identified “Key Line Items” to the general ledger. 
 
Identification As A Repeat Finding:  Not a repeat finding. 
 
Recommendation:  The Commission should complete and retain reconciliations between the live program 
details file and the general ledger to support the amounts reported to U.S. Treasury. 
 
Views Of Responsible Officials: In order to navigate the required Department of Treasury reporting and to 
ensure that all reports reflect clear and appropriate information, staff has implemented many changes to process. 
To address staffing limitations, the Community Programs Processes Department was created in the fall of 2021 
to aid in the reconciliation and financial tracking processes. In the early part of 2022, the Data and Analytics 
Department was officially formed to expand reporting capacity. New processes, in response to known limitations 
and timing restraints, have been developed to ensure adequate record keeping. Regular weekly meetings have 
been established between the Community Programs Processes Department, the Data and Analytics Department, 
and the Division Director to improve the coordination between all parties prior to the reporting deadlines. 
Additionally, where exceptions or changes must be made to reporting processes due to technical deficiencies or 
changes to guidance, processes have been established for clear communication and approval. Finally, as part of 
the regular coordination meetings, a debriefing of the reporting process occurs post submission so that 
improvements to the process may take place as needed. 
 
Anticipated Completion Date: The Commission developed new departments and added additional staffing in 
fall 2021 and early 2022. New processes for report completion, submission, and record keeping were developed 
in the late spring of 2022 and regular communication and process improvement are ongoing. The Commission 
expects to complete implementation of procedures and to document ERA report reconciliations with the general 
ledger during fiscal year 2023. 
 
Contact Person: Steve Whitson, Director of Community Programs 
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CORRECTIVE ACTION PLAN 
 
 
Finding 2022-001 –  Allowable Costs and Activities, Eligibility – Compliance and Control Funding 
Federal Award No. 14.231 Emergency Solutions Grant Program – COVID 19 
Corrective Action Plan: The Commission management identified questionable applicants for direct rental 
assistance during fiscal years 2021 and 2022 and agrees with the finding regarding ALN 14.231.  Internal 
controls have been enhanced to mitigate and identify instances of potential noncompliance. The funding for the 
direct rental assistance under this program was concluded and the final disbursements made in early May 2021. 
The Commission hired an Internal Compliance Manager in May 2021 and has engaged a third party law firm 
and a consulting group to provide consultative assistance to improve processes and to assist in investigating 
applications deemed to be questionable. A formal fraud, waste and abuse policy was adopted in July 2021. During 
fiscal year 2022, MHDC undertook extensive efforts to detect instances of ineligible applicants and 
documentation irregularities, which resulted in identification of these instances of applicant noncompliance.  
Completion Date:  The Commission implemented additional compliance review procedures during fiscal year 
2021, reviewed applications to identify potentially fraudulent applications during fiscal year 2022 and expects 
to conclude its investigation of identified cases during fiscal year 2023. 
Contact Person:  Steve Whitson, Director of Community Programs 
 
Finding 2022-002 –  Allowable Costs and Activities, Eligibility – Compliance and Control Funding 
Federal Award No. 21.023 Emergency Rental Assistance Program – COVID 19 
Corrective Action Plan: The Commission management identified questionable applicants for assistance 
during fiscal years 2021 and 2022 and agrees with the finding regarding ALN 21.023.  Internal controls have 
been enhanced to mitigate and help prevent further exposure to noncompliance. This includes the adoption of a 
formal fraud, waste, and abuse policy in July 2021 as well as providing additional training to employees and 
third parties that are responsible for reviewing and approving applications in order to better detect invalid 
applicants to prevent funding these applicants. In May 2021 the Commission hired an Internal Compliance 
Manager and has engaged a third party law firm and a consulting group to provide consultative assistance to 
improve processes and to assist in investigating applications deemed to be questionable. Further, internal 
staffing capacity has been expanded with the creation of the Community Programs Processes Department in fall 
2021 and the Data and Analytics Department in early 2022. Additional investigative techniques such as “mass 
denial metrics” and tiered level reviews have been implemented into weekly application processing. Processes 
will continue to be implemented in response to changes in behavior by ineligible actors and ineligible application 
submission attempts. Staff has set regular internal coordination meetings to improve communication and aid in 
the identification of new indicators. Internal compliance staff actively participates in national groups 
administering similar programs, and explores and adopts new preventative measures demonstrated to be 
effective in other states.  
Completion Date:  The Commission implemented additional compliance review procedures during fiscal year 
2021 and expects to conclude its investigation of the fiscal year identified cases during calendar year 2023. 
Contact Person:  Steve Whitson, Director of Community Programs 
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CORRECTIVE ACTION PLAN (Continued) 
 
 
Finding 2022-003 –  Reporting – Compliance and Control Funding 
Federal Award No. 21.023 Emergency Rental Assistance Program – COVID 19 
Corrective Action Plan: In order to navigate the required Treasury reporting and to ensure that all reports 
reflect clear and appropriate information, staff has implemented many changes to process. To address staffing 
limitations, the Community Programs Processes Department was created in the fall of 2021 to aid in the 
reconciliation and financial tracking processes. In the early part of 2022, the Data and Analytics Department 
was officially formed to expand reporting capacity. New processes, in response to known limitations and timing 
restraints, have been developed to ensure adequate record keeping. Regular weekly meetings have been 
established between the Community Programs Processes Department, the Data and Analytics Department, and 
the Division Director to improve the coordination between all parties prior to the reporting deadlines. 
Additionally, where exceptions or changes must be made to reporting processes due to technical deficiencies or  
changes to guidance, processes have been established for clear communication and approval. Finally, as part of 
the regular coordination meetings, a debriefing of the reporting process occurs post submission so that 
improvements to the process may take place as needed. 
Completion Date:  The Commission developed new departments and added additional staffing in fall 2021 and 
early 2022. New processes for report completion, submission, and record keeping were developed in the late 
spring of 2022 and regular communication and process improvement are ongoing. The Commission expects to 
complete implementation of procedures and to document ERA report reconciliations with the general ledger 
during fiscal year 2023. 
Contact Person:  Steve Whitson, Director of Community Programs 
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Finding No. Program Description Current Year Status

2021-001 14.231 - Emergency 
Solutions Grant Program - 
COVID-19

Management identified certain 
questionable rental assistance 
payments. Certain payments have 
been reported to the appropriate 
agencies in accordance with 
regulatory requirements and other 
payments are pending further 
investigation. 

Repeated 2022-001

2021-002 21.023 - Emergency Rental 
Assistance Program -  
COVID-19

Management identified certain 
questionable rental assistance 
payments. Certain payments have 
been reported to the appropriate 
agencies in accordance with 
regulatory requirements and other 
payments are pending further 
investigation. 

Repeated 2022-002
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Independent Auditors’ Report 
 
 
The Commissioners of the Missouri 
   Housing Development Commission 
Missouri Housing Trust Fund 
Kansas City, Missouri 
 
 
Opinion  
 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Missouri Housing Trust 
Fund as of and for the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021, and the related notes to the 
financial statements, which collectively comprise the Missouri Housing Trust Fund’s 
basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.  
 
In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material 
respects, the respective financial position of the Missouri Housing Trust Fund as of June 
30, 2022 and 2021, and the respective changes in financial position and cash flows for the 
years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America. 
 
Basis for Opinions 
 
We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United States of America (GAAS). Our responsibilities under those standards are further 
described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 
section of our report. We are required to be independent of the Missouri Housing Trust 
Fund and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant 
ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have 
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions. 
 
Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements 
 
Missouri Housing Trust Fund’s management is responsible for the preparation and fair 
presentation of the financial statements in accordance with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the design, implementation, 
and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of 
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error.  
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In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there 
are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about 
the Missouri Housing Trust Fund’s ability to continue as a going concern for 12 months 
beyond the financial statement date, including any currently known information that 
may raise substantial doubt shortly thereafter.  
 
Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 
 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements 
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to 
issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level 
of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit 
conducted in accordance with GAAS will always detect a material misstatement when it 
exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher 
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional 
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are 
considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the 
aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the 
financial statements.  
 
In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS, we:  
 

• Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout 
the audit.  

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, 
whether due to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive 
to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence 
regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design 
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose 
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Missouri Housing Trust Fund’s 
internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness 
of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the 
overall presentation of the financial statements. 

• Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in 
the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Missouri Housing Trust 
Fund’s ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of time. 
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We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among 
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and 
certain internal control related matters that we identified during the audit. 
 
Required Supplementary Information 
 
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that 
the management’s discussion and analysis on pages 4 through 6 be presented to 
supplement the basic financial statements.  Such information, although not a part of the 
basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board 
who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic 
financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context.  We 
have applied certain limited procedures to the management’s discussion and analysis in 
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, 
which consisted of inquires of management about the methods of preparing the 
information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses 
to our inquires, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during 
our audit of the basic financial statements.  We do not express an opinion or provide any 
assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with 
sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 
 

 
 
September 15, 2022 
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
For the Years Ended June 30, 2022 and 2021 

 
Management’s discussion and analysis of the Missouri Housing Trust Fund’s (Trust 
Fund) financial performance provides an overview of the Trust Fund’s financial activities 
for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021.  Please read it in conjunction with the 
Trust Fund’s financial statements and accompanying notes. 
 
Introduction - Missouri Housing Development Commission 

The Missouri Housing Trust Fund was created by the Missouri State Legislature in 1994 
to help meet the housing needs of very low income Missourians.  The Missouri Housing 
Development Commission (Commission) administers the Trust Fund, which provides for 
a variety of housing needs, such as emergency home repair, emergency rent, mortgage or 
utility payments, acquisition, rehabilitation or new construction of housing facilities and 
related services for very low income families and individuals. 
 
Overview of the Financial Statements 

This annual financial report consists of management’s discussion and analysis and the 
financial statements, including notes to the financial statements.  The Trust Fund 
maintains its financial records on the accrual basis of accounting.  
 
2022 Financial Highlights 

• Total assets were $3.6 million at June 30, 2022, an increase of 31.7% from fiscal 
year end 2021.  This increase resulted from an increase in recording fee revenue in 
fiscal year 2022. 

• Net position increased 31.7% during fiscal year 2022. 

• Recording fee revenue was $4.1 million in fiscal year 2022, an increase of 29.1% 
from 2021. This increase in fee revenue resulted from increased real estate 
document filings.  

• Grants totaled $3.2 million in 2022, an increase of 10.5% from 2021, resulting from 
an increase in funding available from the increase in recording fee revenue. 

 
2021 Financial Highlights 

• Total assets were $2.7 million at June 30, 2021, an increase of 3.8% from fiscal 
year end 2020.  This increase resulted from an increase in recording fee revenue 
and a decrease in housing program grants in fiscal year 2021. 

• Net position increased 11.00% during fiscal year 2021. 

• Recording fee revenue was $3.2 million in fiscal year 2021, an increase of 8.8% 
from 2020.  This increase in fee revenue resulted from increased real estate 
document filings.  

• Grants totaled $2.9 million in 2021, a decrease of 16.9% from 2020, resulting from 
a decrease in housing program grants, reflecting timing of incurred costs. 
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Financial Position 

The following table summarizes the Trust Fund’s assets, liabilities and net position as of 
June 30, 2022, June 30, 2021, and June 30, 2020. 
 

2022 2021 2020 2022 vs 2021 2021 vs 2020

Current Assets
Investments 2,792$     1,602$     1,204$     1,190$          398$             
Other 815           1,137        1,436        (322)              (299)              

Total assets 3,607        2,739        2,640        868               99                  

Current Liabilities -                -                172           -                     (172)              

Restricted Net Position 3,607$     2,739$     2,468$     868$             271$             

Condensed Financial Information
Assets, Liabilities and Net Position (In Thousands)

June 30, $ Change

 
 

Investments 

Investments consist of U.S. government treasury and agency fixed rate securities. The 
Trust Fund’s investment policy emphasizes preservation of principal. At June 30, 2022, 
the Trust Fund had $2.8 million in investments compared to $1.6 million at June 30, 2021 
and $1.2 million at June 30, 2020. 
 
Net Position 

The Trust Fund’s net position is restricted to use as authorized by Sections 215.034-
215.038, RSMo, the Trust Fund enabling legislation. 
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Operating Activities 

The following table summarizes the Trust Fund’s revenues, expenses and changes in net 
position for fiscal years 2022, 2021 and 2020. 
 

2022 2021 2020 2022 vs 2021 2021 vs 2020
Revenues

Recording fees 4,117$     3,188$     2,931$     929$               257$               
Interest income (10)            3               71             (13)                  (68)                  

Total revenues 4,107        3,191        3,002        916                  189                  

Expenses
Grants 3,157        2,856        3,437        301                  (581)                
Administrative expenses 82             64             58             18                    6                      

Total expenses 3,239        2,920        3,495        319                  (575)                

Change in Net Position 868$         271$         (493)$       597$               764$               

Condensed Financial Information
Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position (In Thousands)

$ ChangeJune 30,

 
 
For fiscal year 2022, recording fee revenue increased 29.1% from 2021. During fiscal year 
2021, recording revenue increased 8.8% from 2020. These fees are generated by a $3 
recording fee collected by the Missouri county recorders for each real estate related 
document filing.    
 
Contacting the Trust Fund’s Financial Management 

This financial report is designed to provide stakeholders in the Trust Fund with a general 
overview of the Trust Fund’s finances and to demonstrate accountability of resources.  
Questions about this report or inquiries for additional financial information may be 
directed to the Director of Finance at the Missouri Housing Development Commission, 
920 Main Street, Suite 1400, Kansas City, Missouri 64105 or visit the Commission’s 
website at www.mhdc.com. 
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STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 
(In Thousands) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

2022 2021
Assets

Current Assets
Cash 807$        1,134$     
Investments 2,792                  1,602                  
Accrued interest receivable 8                          3                          

Total Assets 3,607       2,739       

Net Position
Restricted 3,607       2,739       

Total Net Position 3,607$     2,739$     

June 30,
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STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES  
AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION 

(In Thousands) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

2022 2021

Operating Revenues
Recording fees 4,117$     3,188$     
Interest income (10)                      3                          

Total operating revenues 4,107                  3,191                  

Operating Expenses
Grants 3,157                  2,856                  
Administrative expenses 82                        64                        

Total operating expenses 3,239                  2,920                  

Change in Net Position 868                     271                     

Net Position, Beginning of Year 2,739                  2,468                  

Net Position, End of Year 3,607$     2,739$     

For the Years
Ended June 30,
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
(In Thousands) 

 
 
 
 
 

2022 2021

Cash Flows From Operating Activities
Recording fee revenue 4,117$     3,188$     
Payments for grants and other items (3,239)                 (3,092)                 

Net cash provided by operating activities 878                     96                        

Cash Flows From Investing Activities
Proceeds from investment maturities 4,000                  3,800                  
Purchase of investments (5,245)                 (4,210)                 
Income received on investments 40                        21                        

Net cash used in investing activities (1,205)                 (389)                    

Decrease in Cash (327)                    (293)                    

Cash, Beginning of Year 1,134                  1,427                  

Cash, End of Year 807$        1,134$     

Reconciliation of Change in Net Position to Net Cash Provided by
Operating Activities

Change in net position 868$        271$        
Adjustments to reconcile change in net position to net cash

provided by operating activities
Income - investments (45)                      (15)                      
Change in fair value of investments 55                        12                        
Change in assets and liabilities

Decrease in accounts payable -                           (172)                    

Net cash provided by operating activities 878$        96$          

For the Years
Ended June 30,
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
June 30, 2022 and 2021 

 
 
 
1. Nature of Operations and Summary of Significant Accounting 

Policies 
 
The Missouri Housing Trust Fund (Trust Fund) is authorized by Section 215.034, 
RSMo to financially assist, by loans or grants, the development of housing stock 
and to provide housing assistance for persons and families with income at or below 
specified levels.  The Trust Fund is administered by and reported as a fund of the 
Missouri Housing Development Commission (Commission), which is the housing 
finance agency for the state of Missouri (State). 

The following is a summary of the more significant accounting policies of the Trust 
Fund. 
 
Basis of Accounting 

The Trust Fund maintains its financial records on the accrual basis of accounting. 
 
The Trust Fund’s financial statements have been prepared on the basis of 
Governmental Proprietary Fund concept of the Governmental Accounting 
Standards Board (GASB).  The Governmental Proprietary Fund concept is utilized 
when financial activities are operated similarly to private business enterprises and 
financed through fees and charges. 
 
Use of Estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted 
accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions 
that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of 
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the 
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reported period.  Actual 
results could differ from those estimates. 
 
Cash and Cash Equivalents 

For purposes of reporting cash flows, cash and cash equivalents include cash on 
hand and on deposit and temporary investments with an original maturity of three 
months or less. 
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Classification of Revenues 

Revenues and expenses are typically divided into operating and nonoperating 
items.  Operating revenues generally result from providing services in connection 
with the Trust Fund’s principal ongoing operations. The principal operating 
revenues of the Trust Fund are derived from recording fees and interest income 
from investments. Operating expenses consist primarily of grants. All revenues 
and expenses not meeting these definitions would be reported as nonoperating 
revenues and expenses.  The Trust Fund has no nonoperating activities. 
 
Net Position 

Net position represents the difference between assets and liabilities in the Trust 
Fund’s financial statements.  The Trust Fund’s net position is restricted to use as 
authorized by Sections 215.034-215.038, RSMo, the Trust Fund enabling 
legislation. 
 
 

2. Investments 
 
Investments may include Federal Home Loan Bank (FHLB) term deposits and 
bank certificates of deposit reported at cost and U.S. government and agency 
securities reported at fair value. 
 
Investment Policy 

The Commission administers the Trust Fund in accordance with Chapter 215 of 
the Missouri State Statutes.  Section 215.034 RSMo directs the State Treasurer to 
allocate all moneys in the Missouri Housing Trust Fund to the Commission for 
disbursement and investment as directed by the Statute.  Chapter 215 permits the 
Commission to invest any funds not required for immediate disbursement in 
obligations of the State or of the United States government or any instrumentality 
thereof, or bank certificates of deposit.  At June 30, 2022 and 2021, all of the Trust 
Fund’s investments were in compliance with the state statute. 
 
Investment Types and Maturities 

The Commission categorizes the Trust Fund’s fair value measurements within the 
fair value hierarchy established by generally accepted accounting principles. The 
hierarchy is based on the valuation inputs used to measure the fair value of the 
asset. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices in active markets for identical assets; 
Level 2 inputs are significant other observable inputs; and Level 3 inputs are 
significant unobservable inputs.  
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The Trust Fund’s recurring fair value measurements consist of U.S. government 
treasury and agency securities, all of which mature in less than one year, valued 
using a multi-dimensional relational pricing model (Level 2 inputs). These 
securities totaled $2,792,000 and $1,602,000 as of June 30, 2022 and 2021, 
respectively.  
 
Credit Risk 

The Trust Fund’s investments are in securities of U.S. government agencies rated 
in the highest rating category by Moody’s Investor Services (Aaa) and AA+ by 
Standard & Poor’s. 
 
Concentration of Credit Risk 

State statute places no limit on the amount the Trust Fund may invest in any one 
permitted issuer.  The following table lists investments in issuers that represent 
5% or more of total U.S. government treasury and agency investments at June 30, 
2022 and 2021: 

Issuer 2022 2021

U.S. Treasury 100% 81%
Federal Home Loan Mtg Corp 0% 19%

Investments
Percent of Total 

 
 

Custodial Credit Risk 

The custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of the failure of 
a depository financial institution, a government will not be able to recover deposits 
or will not be able to recover collateral securities that are in the possession of an 
outside party. Protection of the Trust Fund’s deposits of $807,000 is provided by 
the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation, and by eligible securities pledged by 
the financial institution. The custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that, 
in the event of the failure of the counterparty to a transaction, a government will 
not be able to recover the value of investment or collateral securities that are in 
the possession of an outside party. In accordance with its policy, the Trust Fund 
addresses custodial credit risk by pre-qualifying institutions with which the Trust 
Fund places investments, diversifying its investments portfolio and maintaining a 
standard of quality for its investments.  
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3. Revenue from the State of Missouri 
 
In accordance with Section 215.034, RSMo, the State distributes to the Trust Fund 
a $3 recording fee collected by the Missouri county recorders for each real estate 
related document filing. 
 
 

4. Administrative Expenses 
 
The Trust Fund reimburses the Commission for administrative costs not to exceed 
2% of Trust Fund revenues. 
 
 

5. Commitments 
 
At June 30, 2022 and 2021, the Trust Fund has outstanding program commitments 
of approximately $3,157,000 and $2,255,000, respectively.  These commitments 
represent Trust Fund grants that were approved prior to year-end for which 
disbursements will be made in subsequent fiscal years. 
 




